
MONO COUNTY 

PLANN IN G CO M M ISS IO N 
                PO Box 347 
 Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
  760.924.1800, fax 924.1801 
     commdev@mono.ca.gov 
 

 
 

                  PO Box 8 
 Bridgeport, CA  93517    

760.932.5420, fax 932.5431                                        
www.monocounty.ca.gov    

 

     DISTRICT #1              DISTRICT #2  DISTRICT #3                 DISTRICT #4                  DISTRICT #5 
   COMMISSIONER         COMMISSIONER          COMMISSIONER            COMMISSIONER            COMMISSIONER 
      Mary Pipersky     Steve Shipley                  Daniel Roberts      Scott Bush              Chris Lizza 

 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2012 – 10 a.m. 

Town/County Conference Room, Minaret Village Mall, Mammoth Lakes 
    

Full agenda packets, plus associated materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, will be 
available for public review at the Community Development offices in Bridgeport (Annex 1, 74 N. School St.) 
or Mammoth Lakes (Minaret Village Mall, above Giovanni’s restaurant). Agenda packets are also posted 
online at www.monocounty.ca.gov / departments / community development / commissions & committees / 
planning commission. For inclusion on the e-mail distribution list, send request to cdritter@mono.ca.gov  

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: Opportunity to publicly address items not on the agenda 

3. MEETING MINUTES: Adopt minutes of September 13, 2012  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 10:10 A.M.

A. GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 12-003 (a) & USE PERMIT 12-003 with associated Deed 
Restriction/Foster. The proposal is t o c hange t he land u se designation o f A PN 015-060-047 f rom 
Single-Family Residence to Commercial Lodging, High, subject to restrictions contained in Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) 12-003 and deed restriction to allow for transient rentals. Any other use, beyond the 
approved CUP 12-003 and deed restriction, under the CL-H designation would require further planning 
review and permitting. The .68-acre parcel i s located at 4835 H wy. 158 in the Down Canyon area of 
June Lake. The CUP includes conditions for future permitted land uses, and is subject to GPA approval 
by the Board of Supervisors. The Planning Commission may recommend that the Board of Supervisors 
approve the proposed General Plan Amendment subject to the conditions of approval for CUP 12-003 
and d eed r estriction. The project q ualifies a s a  C EQA ex emption. Staff: C ourtney W eiche, a ssociate 
planner  - p. 6 

  

 
5. SITE VISIT 
 
 MAMMOTH P ACIFIC I REPLACEMENT P ROJECT. Meet at the intersection of Antelope Springs 

Road and Casa Diablo Cutoff Road/Geothermal Plant Road (east of US 395). The site visit is for 
informational purposes only – no action will be taken.  

11:00 A.M. 

--- LUNCH BREAK --- 

6. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 1:15 P.M.
 B. MAMMOTH P ACIFIC I  R EPLACEMENT P ROJECT F INAL EN VIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

REPORT (FEIR), CLARIFYING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 12-003 (b), CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT 12-004, VARIANCE 12-002 & RECLAMATION PLAN 12-001. The Planning Commission 
may: 1)  certify t he F EIR; 2) a pprove C onditional Use P ermit 12 -004 for t he M -1 R eplacement P lant 
(including the granting of a height exception for mechanical appurtenances) and 

  

1



decommissioning/reuse of the existing MP-I plant site as a s torage area; 3) approve Variance 12-002 
for setback reductions from an exterior property line and blue line stream, and to construct an above-
ground electrical transmission line; and 4) approve Reclamation Plan 12-001. The Planning Commission 
may also recommend that the Board of Supervisors certify the FEIR and approve General Plan 
Amendment 12-003 to clarify the County’s intent and interpretation of Chapter 15, section 15.070 
(B)(1)(d) and Objective D, Policy 1,  Action 1.13 o f the Energy Resources section of the Conservation 
and Open Space Element pertaining to setbacks from a blue-line stream. The proposed project would 
replace the aging MP-I geothermal power plant with a new, more-modern and -efficient binary power 
plant ( referred t o a s “M-1”) while maintaining t he e xisting geothermal wellfield, p ipeline sy stem and 
ancillary facilities. No new offices or other structures are proposed, with the exception of a small 
substation to be placed on the north side of the project site. The M-1 plant would be located ~500’ east 
of the existing MP-I p lant, which is located ~1,200’ northeast of the intersection o f US Highway 395 
and State Route 203 on 90 acres of private (fee) land owned by Ormat Nevada, Inc. The M-1 
replacement power plant is anticipated to increase the net electricity generation by 34% while utilizing 
the same geothermal resources for the existing MP-I facility. During M-1 plant startup operations, the 
existing MP-I plant would continue to operate until the new M-1 plant becomes commercial, after which 
time t he a pplicant w ould c lose a nd d ismantle t he o ld MP -I p lant a nd w ould utilize t he f ormer p lant 
location for equipment storage. The transition period during which both the MP-I and M-1 operations 
would overlap but would not exceed two years from the date the M-1 plant begins startup operations. 
Staff: Courtney Weiche, associate planner, and Gerry Le Francois, principal planner - p 27 

 
7. WORKSHOP: None  
 
8. REPORTS:      

A.  DIRECTOR 
B.  COMMISSIONERS 

 
9. ADJOURN  
 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone who needs special assistance to attend this meeting 
can contact the commission secretary at 760-924-1804 within 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to ensure 
accessibility (see 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 35.130). 
 

 

Interested persons may appear before the Planning Commission to present testimony for public hearings, or prior to 
or at the hearing file written correspondence with the commission secretary. Future court challenges to these items 
may be l imited t o t hose i ssues r aised a t t he pu blic h earing o r pr ovided i n w riting t o t he M ono C ounty P lanning 
Commission prior to or at the public hearing. Project proponents, agents or citizens who wish to speak are asked to 
be acknowledged by the Chair, print their names on the sign-in sheet, and address the Planning Commission from 
the podium. 

2



MONO COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

                PO Box 347 
 Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
  760.924.1800, fax 924.1801 
     commdev@mono.ca.gov 
 

 
 

                  PO Box 8 
     Bridgeport, CA  93517       
760.932.5420, fax           
932.5431                              
www.monocounty.ca.gov    

 

     DISTRICT #1               DISTRICT #2      DISTRICT #3                 DISTRICT #4                  DISTRICT #5 
   COMMISSIONER          COMMISSIONER              COMMISSIONER             COMMISSIONER              COMMISSIONER 
      Mary Pipersky            Steve Shipley                  Daniel Roberts               Scott Bush         Chris Lizza 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
September 13, 2012 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chris Lizza, Mary Pipersky, Dan Roberts, Steve Shipley. ABSENT: Scott Bush 

STAFF PRESENT: Gerry Le Francois, principal planner; Wendy Sugimura, associate analyst; Walt Lehmann, public works; 
Stacey Simon, assistant county counsel; C.D. Ritter, commission secretary  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Chair Steve Shipley called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m. 

at the county courthouse in Bridgeport, CA, and led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 
 
3. CONSENT ITEM: 

A. FINAL APPROVAL OF TRACT MAP 37-59 A&B – Phases 1 & 2/Rock Creek Canyon. Approval of Tract 
Map 37-59 will divide APN 026-330-003, totaling 29 acres, into 14 lots: 12 market-rate single-family residential lots; and two 
parcels devoted to complementary uses including a trailhead parking lot and dedication of 5.59 acres of open space. The 
project is located at 7997 Lower Rock Creek Road (aka former Paradise Resort), in the unincorporated community of Sierra 
Paradise. The Mono Supervisors approved the Rock Creek Canyon Specific Plan and Tentative Maps 37-59 A&B on Dec. 21, 
2010, and later amended the SP on April 17, 2012. Staff: Gerry LeFrancois, Walt Lehmann  
 
 Walt Lehmann indicated staff had reviewed the map  and verified conditions had been met. He distributed 
Notice of Development Conditions that would apply to future owners. Gerry Le Francois requested considering 
approval of Tentative Tract Map (TTM) 37-59. By signing/approving final map, commission would recommend 
Mono Supervisors do likewise. All 70-some conditions have been met.  
 Are CC&Rs r equirement of tract map s? Yes, but n ot part of, a nd Mono d oes not enforc e. Conditions are 
satisfied and mitigated.  
 Lehmann clarified that the new n otice omits conditions already met, will record concurrently. Le Francois 
indicated road standards have been met, so would not apply to future owners.  
 Stacey Simon stated that the tentative tract map function is to get the concept down and set forth a list of 
things to accomplish before final map. Some things are done and off the table, whereas others are never done 
(continuing) and carry forward. Lehmann stated that all required improvements were done. 
 
 MOTION: Authorize chair to sign map (Lizza/Pipersky. Ayes: 4. Absent: Bush.)   
 

4. MEETI NG MINUTES: Review and adopt minutes of August 9, 2012, as amended: 1) Item 4B, add: 
Commissioner Lizza revealed that he is close personal friends with the proponent and her family, 
and that they and he operate businesses in the same community. Commissioners voiced no 
objection; and 2) Item 4C discussion: Simon described the overlay as broad, one size fits all. Very difficult to 
apply outside overlay residential districts. 
 
 MOTION: Adopt minutes of August 9, 2012, as submitted. (Roberts/Lizza. Ayes: 3. Abstain because left 

meeting early: Pipersky. Absent: Bush.)   
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.  
 
 

33



2 
 

6. WORK SHOPS: 
A. LEE VINING/RUSH CREEK FIBER OPTIC LINE/Southern California Edison (SCE). Dan Brady and 
Kevin Bigham reported that SCE had  created a relia ble telecom system to control Rush Creek dam and 
powerhouse. An automated communication structure was set up for early warning. The request is to install ½” 
diameter fiber optic line 1 5 miles, five miles along scenic byway. Must go to P ublic Utilities Commission (PUC) 
for deviation from scenic b yway guidelines. Pr ocess includes going to local entities for letter s of opinion . SCE 
visited June Lake CAC and Mono Basin RPAC so the process was transparent and had public participation.  
 Bigham showed existing and proposed visuals. Wires are visible only against sky. Height requirement set by 
Caltrans was from highway and SCE from primary conductors. RPACs asked why not go underground. Business 
cost increase is 10x, biological and archaeol ogical issues, and two creek crossings. Burden would be passed  
along to customers. SCE attempts to ensure projects are cost effective.  
 Feedback on other issues? Resident Ann Tozier opp oses more overhead lines i n June Lake . Do lines cross 
through community? Yes. 
 A combo of radiation and  microwaves would detec t equipment f ailure. Current setup running off phone  
lines barely takes the load, extends to June Mountain but with no video capability 
 Where does line start? Lines to lakes in 2014, Gem and Agnew dams are a concern, and Silver Lake is a Los 
Angeles Department of Water and Power facility. 
 Would project affect scenic highway? Not at all. Stacey Simon noted SCE woul d need deviation from P UC 
for crossing scenic highway. Impact must be infinitesimal. Bigham indicated SCE would pursue with PUC.  
 When would it be complete? Next year, due to scenic highway. 
 Simon noted  SCE ultim ately was seeking an opini on letter from Mon o Sup ervisors. She recommend ed 
agendizing it as a letter request. 
 Commissioners appr oved l east-intrusive proposal . Height is ~20’ , so n o i ssues of  equipment clipping it. 
Total distance is 15 miles, with five miles along scenic highway.    
 
B. BRIDGEPORT MAIN STREET REVITALIZATION PROJECT. Wendy Sugimura reported on recent highly 
interactive worksh ops on converting a highway in to a c ommunity-based Main Stree t. S he presen ted Dan 
Burden’s PowerPoint on transforming a street into a comfortable pedestrian way. Burden made some changes 
when he was here in 2000. Thi s time, he worked closely with Caltrans on desig n concepts. He looked at flaws 
and assets, and how adding parking, street trees, and narrower lanes to create enclosure and driver awareness 
would improve and increase pr operty values. Buil dings can cr eate edge and definition, and back-in angle 
parking is easier than parallel and allows drivers to pull out into traffic. 
 Residents wanted t o rec ognize hist orical, pa storal nature of c ommunity, it s rustic n ature, and far m 
buildings. Opportunities exist f or unique businesses li ke Jolly Kone (food + m assage), properties no longer in 
use, and par king in back to hon or street front (1881). Street frontages p rovide character. I ssues: long 
pedestrian crossings, not well marked; driveway s without flat section for disabled; incompl ete sidewalks used 
by school kids; and large seas of pavement. Suggestions: Honor nice views; consider snow management.  
 Burden noted that busin ess owner s are notoriou sly difficult to engage, bu t Bridgeport got 90% (78  
attendees). Kept adding chairs, lots of participati on. Visions and values draw people. Attendees wrote on cards 
their vision of what should happen on  Main Str eet, and then voted on priorit ies. Af ter the  workshops and a 
walking audit, residents sat at tables to design their own Main Street, with some presenting their ideas.  
 Tools & resources: Take priorities and make changes to Main Street. Create pedestrian and bicycle mobility 
map. Add striping to define walking/c ycling space on co unty r oad for kids. Use thick sid e stripe (8 -10”) to 
create a bol der line. Tre es wer e highest priority to create street and sidewalk definition , a mor e inviting 
appearance. Planter boxes should maintain full sidewalk width. Sequential steps reduce traffic speed. Land use 
and property values around it change.  
 Gateways: In dividual monument sign, guard rail with flowers, tr ees. Create a tran sition. Center median  
strip would not work here due to snow removal.  
 Traffic lanes: Biggest poin t of con sensus was ch anging from five lanes to three, with col orized median. 
Caltrans wanted 12’ lanes, not 11’.  
 Parking: Hesitation on back-in parking, but that has changed by community advocates (all but one concur). 
Reduce number of curb cuts and red cur bs. Parallel parking could accommodate recreational vehicles. Caltrans 

44



3 
 

doesn’t like striped-out areas due to winter conditi ons. In long term, extend  sidewalk with greenscapi ng to 
narrow. Snow drivers automatically form two lanes with center median.  
 Curb extensions: Bring sidewalk partly out into street to reduce pedestrian travel distance. Driver has better 
view of oncoming traffic after pulling out. Removable curb extensions like large planter boxes for summer could 
be removed in winter. Places to sit could reflect character of community.  
 Aesthetics: Flower boxes on guardrails. Add bike la nes to create clearer space for all and buffer between 
parked cars and traffic. B ack-in parkin g is somewh at natural an d already has been arou nd a long time –  
motorcycles, cowboys, rednecks, urbanites, horses. 
 Buildings: Reinvigorate old structures. Change facades/architecture of buildings. 
 Roundabouts: Touchy sub ject. Caltrans wants th em for functi onal traffic m anagement, not at gateways. 
Interagency visitor center is a possibility.  
 Current Caltr ans overlay was to occur a year  ag o, but contr actor hasn’t achieved right asphalt mix. 
Opportunity exists to mak e changes soon: striping for fewer lanes, back -in parking.  Final report will include 
phasing plan and implementation recommendations. The plan is to take concepts to other communitie s in the  
future. The project provided a great foundation for working together on issues.  
 Four lanes on either side of town? Environmental issues with wetlands have precluded that. Town becomes 
a passing opportunity. 
 

7. REPORTS:      
A.  PRINCIPAL PLANNER: 1) MP-1: Replacement project to Planning Commission Oct. 11 in  Mammoth. 2) 
Crowley cell tower: Up, visible only at close range, blends in with hillside, color blends with terrain.  
   
B.  COMMISSIONERS: Roberts: Sidewalk installed on north side of SR 158 in June Lake. Next month is the 
annual meeting of California County Planning Commissioners Association.  
 

8. INFORMATIONAL: No items.  
 

9. ADJOURN:   11:33 a.m. 
Prepared by C.D. Ritter, commission secretary 

 

55



Mono County 
Community Development Department 

            P.O. Box 347 
 Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
(760) 924-1800, fax 924-1801 
    commdev@mono.ca.gov 

    Planning Division   
 

                                 P.O. Box 8 
                Bridgeport, CA  93517 

             (760) 932-5420, fax 932-5431 
           www.monocounty.ca.gov 

 

Planning / Building / Code Compliance / Environmental / Collaborative Planning Team (CPT) 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) / Local Transportation Commission (LTC) / Regional Planning Advisory Committees (RPACs) 

Date: October 11, 2012     

To: Mono County Planning Commission                     

From: Courtney Weiche, Associate Planner 

Re: Use Permit Application 12-003 and General Plan Amendment 12-003(a) / Foster 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended the Planning Commission take the following actions: 
 

1. Find that the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a 
Categorical Exemption under CEQA guidelines 15301 & 15303and direct staff to file a 
Categorical Exemption; and 

2. Approve Resolution 12-04, and recommend approval of General Plan Amendment 12-003(a) 
to the Board of Supervisors; and 

3. Make the required findings as contained in the project staff report, and approve Conditional 
Use Permit application 12-003 subject to Conditions of Approval.  

 
PROJECT 
The proposal is to allow use of a single-family residence at 4835 Highway 158 in June Lake (APN 016-
186-007) for transient rentals, as defined in a voluntary deed restriction the applicant will record for the 
property. The project includes a General Plan Amendment (GPA) to change the land use designation 
from Single-Family Residential (SFR) to Commercial Lodging, High (CL-H), subject to restrictions set 
forth in the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow operation of a transient rental. The CUP includes 
requirements for future permitted land uses, and is conditioned uponapproval of the GPA to change the 
property’s designation from SFR to CL-H  by the Board of Supervisors and upon the property being 
enforceably restricted to transient rental and/or residential use. Transient rentals are allowed in CL-H, 
with a use permit but are not allowed within SFR.  Any increase in intensity of use, beyond the 
approved CUP 12-003, under the CL-H designation would require further planning review and 
permitting. Furthermore, the applicant is voluntarily deed restricting the property so that it may 
be used only as single family residence or as a transient rental (see attachment A).  
 
PROJECT SETTING 
The project parcel is located adjacent to similar commercial lodging uses and the Down Canyon 
commercial area of June Lake (See Figure 1). The areas to the north and east of the project parcel have 
a land use designation of Single Family Residential, and to the west and north-west of the project, the 
parcels have land use designations of Commercial and Commercial Lodging, High. It is directly 
adjacent parcels with land use designations such as Commercial (C) and Commercial Lodging-High 
(CL-H) that are all intended to promote commercial uses, including transient rentals. Along Highway 
158, to the west, is the Four Seasons, Carson Peak Inn and the Hideaway Condos.  

6



2 
 

 

Figure 1 

Project 
Location 

7



3 
 

BACKGROUND 
The project includes the use of the existing single-family residence which has 4 bedrooms and 
4.5 baths with a two car garage. Although it not required, the applicant voluntarily enlisted the 
services of the professional safety engineering firm, Peak Consultants, to perform additional 
safety evaluations of the property and has implemented the suggested improvements from their 
report. This includes, but is not limited to, the development of emergency evacuation plans for 
each bedroom, installation of pull-down fire alarms on each floor, installing commercial grade 
firebox for flammable materials, installing CO alarms on ever floor, installation of a Knox-box 
and creating sufficient defensible space around the property. In addition, Jerry Allendorf, Chief 
of June Lake Fire Protection District, has inspected the residence and found the project 
proposal to be consistent with any applicable fire requirements. These elements further justify 
the transition of the single-family residence to a transient rental.  
 
The applicant has voluntarily prepared and will record a deed restriction limiting the use of the 
property so that it may be used only as a transient rental. The deed restriction ensures that the 
property will not be used for additional commercial purposes or higher density uses, unless the 
property owner or its successor applies for and is duly approved by County for other or 
additional uses on the Property. 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 
The following discusses major components of the proposal, reviews their conformity with Mono 
County’s General Plan and Planning Commission requirements, and recommends options for the 
Commissions consideration. 
 
The following excerpts are various sections of the Mono County General Plan defining and outlining 
compliance with the permitting of a transient rental (rentals for fewer than 30 consecutive days): 
 
Development Standards: 
Subject to the General Plan Amendment approval for the land use designation change to Commercial 
Lodging, High a transient rental is allowed in this designation subject to a director review or conditional 
use permit.  
 

Commercial Lodging, Moderate (CL-M) and High (CL-H) 
 

INTENT: The “CL-M” designation is intended to provide commercial lodging units for 
short-term occupation in or near residential uses. 
 
The “CL-H” designation is intended to provide short-term commercial lodging units in 
close proximity to commercial/recreational centers. 
 
 
PERMITTED USES 

• Single-family dwelling (mobile homes are not permitted) 
• Duplexes and triplexes 
• Accessory buildings and uses1 
• Animals and pets (see Animal Standards Section 04.270) 
• Home occupations (see Home Occupation regulations, Section 04.290) 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO DIRECTOR REVIEW (Director Review Processing, Ch. 31) 

8



4 
 

• Transient rentals (rentals for fewer than 30 consecutive days) of up to three dwelling 
units 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO USE PERMIT (Use Permit Processing, Ch. 32) 

• Mobile-home parks (see Dev. Standards –Mobile-home and RV Parks, Ch. 17) 
• Recreational-vehicle parks (see Ch. 17) 
• Condominiums, cooperatives, townhomes, cluster developments, apartments 

containing four or more units 
• Hotels, motels, lodges, bed-and-breakfast establishments, cabins and other 

uses found to be similar by the Commission. Ancillary uses such as limited 
dining, lounges and convenience retail, provided the ancillary use does not 
occupy more than 25 percent of the project's habitable space 

• Transient rentals (fewer than 30 consecutive days) of four or more dwelling 
units 

• Conversion of five or more apartment units into transient rentals 
• Conversion of existing habitable space into ancillary uses 
• Parking lots and parking structures other than required off-street parking  
• Construction of an accessory building prior to construction of the main building 

 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Minimum Lot Area: 
Hotels, motels, lodges, bed-and-breakfast establishments, rental cabins and other 

similar uses – 20,000 sf 
Condominiums, cooperatives, townhouses, cluster developments and similar uses 

(excluding apartments) – 20,000 sf 
All other uses – 10,000 sf 
Land uses on lots measuring less than 10,000 sq. ft. shall be limited to single-family 

residences, duplexes and triplexes (mobile homes are not permitted) 
 
The parcel’s lot size is 32,670 square feet, which is above the minimum required lot area of 20,000 square 
feet for the proposed use within this land use designation.  
  
Chapter 06 – Parking Development Standards  
Table 06.010 of the General Plan illustrates the required parking spaces needed for a single 
family residence in June Lake is 3 parking spaces. The residence has a two car attached garage 
and a large enough driveway to park four additional vehicles tandem in front, for a total 
possibility of six vehicles. However, the applicant has indicated that the lessee agreement with 
each renter will only permit a maximum of three vehicles.  
 
Snow Storage Requirements: 
Section II, page 214, 04.300 states: 
 

“Snow-storage areas shall be provided for all future commercial and multi-family (three or 
more units) development, including condominiums. Snow-storage area(s) shall be equal to 
a required percentage of the area from which the snow is to be removed (i.e., parking and 
access/roads areas).” 

 

9



5 
 

The project does not include any additional impervious surfaces that require snow removal and 
therefore would not require additional snow storage than what currently exists. Furthermore, 
there is ample snow storage available for any necessary snow removal on the property.  
 

10



6 
 

 

Figure 2  

11



7 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
The LDTAC met on June 4, 2011 and September 17, 2012 to review and provide input on the project 
proposal. LDTAC comments are incorporated and reflected in the project description and conditions of 
approval for this use permit.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
This project has been found to be categorically exempt from CEQA; a Class 1 Categorical 
Exemption under CEQA Guideline 15301 and Class 3 15303 Categorical Exemption under 
CEQA Guideline has been issued: 

CEQA Guidelines 15301. Existing Facilities Class 1 consists of the operation, 
repair, maintenance permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing 
public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical 
features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time 
of the lead agency’s determination. The key consideration is whether the project 
involves negligible or no expansion of an existing use.  

CEQA Guidelines 15303. New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures 
Class 3 consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small 
facilities or structures; installation of small new equipment and facilities in small 
structures; and the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another 
where only minor modifications are made in the exterior of the structure. The 
numbers of structures described in this section are the maximum allowable on any 
legal parcel.  

 
 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 
If the commission decides to recommend approval of General Plan Amendment 12-003 (a), the 
commission should make the findings contained in Planning Commission Resolution R12-04. 
 
USE PERMIT FINDINGS  
In accordance with Mono County General Plan, Chapter 32, Processing-Use Permits, the Planning 
Commission may issue a Use Permit after making certain findings. 

Section 32.010, Required Findings: 

1. All applicable provisions of the Mono County General Plan are complied with, and the site of the 
proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use and to accommodate all yards, 
walls and fences, parking, loading, landscaping and other required features because: 

a) The parcel’s lot size is 32,670 square feet, which is above the minimum required lot area of 
20,000 square feet for the proposed use within this land use designation.  

b) The project complies with all setbacks, parking and lot coverage as required under the 
General Plan. 

c) Mono County General Plan, Land Use Designations, Commercial Lodging-High, permits 
the operation of a transient rental through a Director Review or Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The site for the proposed use related to streets and highways is adequate in width and type to carry 
the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use because: 

a)    The parcel is accessed by Highway 158 and is adequate for the kind of traffic generated by 
the proposed use. An encroachment permit has been approved by Caltrans.  

12



8 
 

b) Required parking spaces are subject to compliance with length and width dimensions and 
any other county requirements. 

c) The project is not expected to generate significant amounts of traffic to alter existing 
circulation patterns.  

3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or 
improvements in the area in which the property is located because:  

a) The proposed use is not expected to cause significant environmental impacts as there are 
minimal, if any, necessary improvements for the conversion of the single-family residence 
to a transient rental. 

b) The proposed project is a conforming use according to the Mono County General Plan’s 
Land Use Element. The use permit process provides the public the opportunity to comment 
on the proposal and no comments have been received in opposition to the project. 

c) The project proposes no exterior modification and provides sufficient buffer from 
the existing residential properties due to topography and placement of the existing 
residential structure.  

4. The proposed use is consistent with the map and text of the Mono County General Plan because: 

a) The Commercial Lodging-High designation in the General Plan permits the operation of a 
transient rental subject to Use Permit.  The proposed use would be consistent with this 
designation, if the proposed General Plan Amendment is approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

b) The project promotes the General Plan’s County-Wide policies Objective D which 
states the county should provide for commercial development to serve both visitors 
and residents. Policy 4: Allow for the integration of small-scale commercial uses 
with associated residential uses. Objective H states: Maintain and enhance the local 
economy and Action 5.1 Encourage and promote the preservation and expansion of 
the county's tourist and recreation-based economy. The project provides for 
additional visitor lodging and encourages tourist-based economy by providing a 
variety of lodging options within the County and is consistent with the text and 
maps of the General Plan. 

c) The project is located within the June Lake Planning Area. The June Lake Area 
Plan encourages providing a wide range of commercial and residential uses in the 
pedestrian-oriented atmosphere. The project provides for additional visitor lodging 
and encourages tourist-based economy by providing a variety of lodging options 
within the June Lake Loop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



9 
 

 

MONO COUNTY 
Planning Division 

 DRAFT NOTICE OF DECISION & USE PERMIT 
 

USE PERMIT: UP 12-003 APPLICANT: Robert Foster 
 

016-186-007 
 

PROJECT TITLE: Operation of a transient rental  
 
PROJECT LOCATION: The project is located at 4838 Highway 158, June Lake, CA 

 
On October 11, 2012, a duly advertised and noticed public hearing was held and the necessary findings, pursuant to 
Chapter 32.010, Land Development Regulations, of the Mono County General Plan Land Use Element, were made 
by the Mono County Planning Commission. In accordance with those findings, a Notice of Decision is hereby 
rendered for Use Permit 12-003, Foster, subject to the following conditions, at the conclusion of the appeal period, 
and upon approval by the Board of Supervisors of GPA 12-003(a). 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
See attached Conditions of Approval 

 
ANY AFFECTED PERSON, INCLUDING THE APPLICANT, NOT SATISFIED WITH THE DECISION OF 
THE COMMISSION, MAY WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE DECISION, 
SUBMIT AN APPEAL IN WRITING TO THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. 
 
THE APPEAL SHALL INCLUDE THE APPELLANT'S INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE 
DECISION OR ACTION APPEALED, SPECIFIC REASONS WHY THE APPELLANT BELIEVES THE 
DECISION APPEALED SHOULD NOT BE UPHELD AND SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY THE 
APPROPRIATE FILING FEE. 
 
DATE OF DECISION/USE PERMIT APPROVAL: 
EFFECTIVE DATE USE PERMIT  

October 11, 2012 
October 22, 2012 

   
 
This Use Permit shall become null and void in the event of failure to exercise the rights of the permit within one (1) 
year from the date of approval unless an extension is applied for at least 60 days prior to the expiration date. 
 
On-going compliance with the above conditions is mandatory. Failure to comply constitutes grounds for revocation 
and the institution of proceedings to enjoin the subject use.  
 

MONO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

DATED: October 11, 2012  
 cc: X Applicant 
  X Public Works 
  X Building  
  X Compliance 

 
 
 

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER: 

14



10 
 

 
 

Conditions of Approval 
Use Permit 12-003/Foster 

 
1. Use Permit 12-001 is conditioned upon  approval of General Plan Amendment 12-003(a) to 

change the project parcel (APN 016-186-007) land use designation from Single-Family 
Residence to Commercial Lodging, High. 

2. The applicant shall obtain the required approvals from Mono County Environmental 
Health. The spa pool at this residence does not meet State of California design and 
construction requirements to operate as a commercial spa. The spa shall be drained, 
cleaned and disinfected between different parties/rental groups. The spa shall be 
otherwise maintained in a clean and sanitary condition whenever open for use. The 
applicant shall prepare a letter of commitment to comply with these requirements and 
forward copies to the Mono County Health Department and to the Mono County 
Community Development Department. 

 
3. The owner or property manager shall be available by telephone on a 24-hour basis to 

respond to calls regarding the conditions and/or operation of the unit. Failure to timely 
respond in an appropriate manner may result in revocation of the use permit and business 
license. 

 
4. The project shall comply with Fire-Safe Regulations (Mono County General Plan, Land 

Use Element, Section VI Land Development Regulations, Chapter 22) pertaining to 
emergency access and vegetation modification.  

 
5. The property shall comply with all land use regulations as set forth in the Mono County 

General Plan.  
 

6. A Mono County business license must be obtained and must remain active at all times the 
property is used as a transient rental. 

 
7. A Mono County Transient Occupancy Certificate must be obtained from the Department 

of Finance and will be issued at the time when all conditions of approval have been met.  
 

8. The maximum number of persons who may occupy the property as overnight guests shall 
be limited to ten persons.  
 

9. All signs shall be in conformance with Chapter 07 of the Mono County General Plan. 
 

10. A sufficient number of trash receptacles shall be available. Trash and other solid waste 
shall not be allowed to accumulate in or around the property and shall be promptly 
removed to a designated landfill, transfer station or other designated site. Any trash 

15



11 
 

receptacles located outside a unit shall be in bear-proof containers and comply with any 
County standards.  

 
11. Snow removal from driveways, walkways, stairs, decks, and any emergency access 

egress sites shall be performed prior to each occupancy period, and during any occupancy 
period as necessary. 

 
12. The owner or property manager shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable 

codes regarding fire, building and safety, health and safety, and all other relevant laws.  
 

13. The owner, or property manager, and guest shall comply with all lawful direction from 
any law enforcement officer, fire official, building official, or code compliance officer. 

 
14. The applicant shall comply with the following requirements:  

 
a. Health and Safety Requirements:  

i. The address of the rental unit must be clearly visible from the street. 
ii. Smoke detectors must be installed and maintained in good operating 

condition in each bedroom and sleeping area and at a point centrally 
located in the rental unit. 

iii. The rental unit must be equipped with the requisite number of fire 
extinguishers determined by the building official and shall be mounted in 
visible locations and contain operating instructions.  There shall be a 
minimum of one fire extinguisher for each floor. 

 
b. Sign and Notification Requirements:   

i. Exterior Sign and Notice.  The rental unit shall be equipped with one 
temporary exterior identification sign not to exceed two (2) square feet in 
size that shall be posted each day the unit is being rented on a transient 
basis.  This sign shall clearly state the following information in lettering of 
sufficient size to be easily read: 

1. The name of the managing agency, agent, property manager or 
owner of the unit and the telephone number where said person or 
persons can be reached on a 24-hour basis. 

2. The maximum number of occupants permitted to stay in the unit. 
ii. Interior Notice.  A clearly visible and legible notice posted within the unit 

adjacent to the front door that shall contain the same information set forth 
above, and shall include the following: 

1. Notification and instructions about the proper disposal of trash and 
refuse. 

2. Notification and instructions concerning the proper use of any 
appliances, fireplaces, heaters, spas, or any other fixture or feature 
within the unit. 

3. Notification that any violation of rules or regulations set forth in 
the Rental Agreement may be a violation of this Use Permit and 

16



12 
 

may result in immediate removal from the premises and 
administrative, civil or criminal penalty. 

4. Address and location of transient rental residence.  
 

c. The temporary rental or use of each rental unit shall be made pursuant to a Rental 
Agreement.  The rental agreement shall include, as attachments, a copy of this 
Use Permit Conditions of Approval for the unit.  Each rental agreement shall 
contain all required notices and shall specify the number of persons who may 
occupy the unit, trash disposal requirements, and include the telephone number of 
the person or persons to be notified in the event of any problem that arises with 
the rental.  The agreement shall include the phone number, address, and contact 
information for the person responsible for renting the unit, and any other 
information required by the County.   

 
15. The owner shall use best efforts to assure that the occupants and/or guests of the rental 

property do not create unreasonable noise or disturbances, engage in disorderly conduct, 
or violate any law. If an owner or agent of the owner is informed about any violation of 
this section, the owner or owner’s agent shall promptly use best efforts to stop or prevent 
a recurrence of such conduct, including, when appropriate, calling law enforcement.  

 
16. Any required County fees must be paid in full. 

 
17. If any of these conditions are violated, this permit and all rights hereunder may be 

revoked in accordance with Section 32.080 of the Mono County General Plan, Land 
Development Regulations. 

 
18. An inspection and/or audit of each unit subject to this Use Permit, and any contract or 

agreement entered into in furtherance of, or to implement, this Use Permit, may be made 
at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice to confirm compliance with this Use 
Permit.  
 

19. This use permit recognizes the voluntary deed restriction recorded by the property owner 
and thus prohibits other property uses not allowed by the deed restriction unless further 
approvals are granted following necessary environmental review. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 

Resolution R12-04 
Mono County Planning Commission 

1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R12-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION INITIATING & 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPT  

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 12-003(a), CHANGING THE CURRENT LAND USE 
DESIGNATION FROM SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO COMMERCIAL LODGING- HIGH 

FOR ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER 016-186-007. 

WHEREAS, in connection with a Use Permit application for a transient rental, the property 
owner has applied for a General Plan Map Amendment and initiation of such amendment is warranted; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed General Plan Amendment 12-003(a) and Use Permit 12-003 address the 
redesignation of Assessor’s Parcel #016-186-007 from Single-Family Residential (SFR) to Commercial 
Lodging- High (CL-H); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the above 
project, this commission has determined that the proposed GPA would not have a significant effect upon 
the environment and a Categorical Exemption has been prepared; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with state law and Chapter 46, Section 46.020, the Planning 
Commission has held a public hearing to receive any and all testimony of affected property owners and 
thereafter will forward a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors; and   

 
WHEREAS, in consideration of evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing in 

accordance with Chapter 48 of the Land Use Element of the General Plan, the Planning Commission hereby 
adopts the following findings with respect to the proposed GPA:  

 
1. The proposed change in the land use designation is consistent with the text and maps of this 

General Plan.  
The project promotes the General Plan’s countywide policies Objective D, which states the 
County should provide for commercial development to serve both visitors and residents. Policy 
4: Allow for the integration of small-scale commercial uses with associated residential uses. 
Objective H states: Maintain and enhance the local economy and Action 5.1: Encourage and 
promote the preservation and expansion of the county's tourist and recreation-based economy. 
The project provides for additional visitor lodging and encourages tourist-based economy by 
providing a variety of lodging options within the county and is consistent with the text and maps 
of the General Plan. 
 

2. The proposed change in land use designation is consistent with the goals and policies contained 
within any applicable area plan. 
The project is located within the June Lake Planning Area. The June Lake Area Plan encourages 
providing a wide range of commercial and residential uses. The project provides for additional 
visitor lodging and encourages tourist-based economy by providing a variety of lodging options 
within the June Lake Loop. 
 

18



 

Resolution R12-04 
Mono County Planning Commission 

2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

3. The site of the proposed change in land use designation is suitable for any of the land uses 
permitted within that proposed land use designation. 
The project parcel is 32,670 square feet, which is above the minimum required lot area of 20,000 
square feet for the proposed use within this land use designation. Additional uses permitted 
outright, without further planning review under the land use designation CL-H, are no more 
intensive than previously allowed under SFR. Any increase in intensity of use under the CL-H 
designation will require further planning review and permitting.  
 

4. The proposed change in land use designation is reasonable and beneficial at this time. 
The proposed change from a SFR to CL-H is beneficial to the community’s visitor-oriented 
economy by providing additional and diverse commercial lodging within the June Lake Loop. 
The proposed transient rental associated with the change in land use designation will be subject 
to the approval of Use Permit 12-003, which will condition the use of the property.  
 

5. The proposed change in land use designation will not have a substantial adverse effect on 
surrounding properties. 
The redesignation of Assessor’s Parcel # 016-186-007 from SFR to CL-H will not create undue 
hardship on adjacent properties. The proposed project is subject to Use Permit 12-003, and the 
land use designation change would permit transient rentals. The property is adjacent to the north 
by parcels zoned Commercial Lodging-High, which allows for similar uses such as transient 
rentals, mobile-home parks, and bed-and-breakfast establishments. The project proposes no 
exterior modification and provides sufficient buffer from the existing residential properties due 
to topography and placement of the existing residential structure. The project will not have a 
significant effect upon the environment and a Categorical Exemption has been prepared.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT that the Mono County Planning 
Commission, in conformance to the Mono County General Plan, Chapter 48, Section 48.020, hereby: 
adopts this resolution initiating a General Plan Amendment; finds that the proposed changes are 
consistent with the General Plan, including the 2010 June Lake Area Plan; and recommends that the 
Board of Supervisors approve General Plan Amendment 12-003(a) redesignating Assessor’s Parcel #016-
186-007 from Single-Family Residential (SFR) to Commercial Lodging-High (CL-H), provided that 
appropriate mechanisms are in place to restrict the use of the property to single family residential and/or 
transient rental uses. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of October, 2012, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES :   
 
 NOES :  
 
 ABSENT :  
 
 ABSTAIN :  
 
                    ________________________________ 
       Steve Shipley, Chair 

 Mono County Planning Commission 

19



 

Resolution R12-04 
Mono County Planning Commission 

3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________              
C.D. Ritter, Commission Secretary   Stacey Simon, Assistant County Counsel 
 

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

1 
 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
Stacey Simon 
Office of the Mono County Counsel 
P.O. Box 2415 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 
 
APN # 016-186-007 
 

DEED RESTRICTION, COVENANT, AND AGREEMENT 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
THIS DEED RESTRICTION, COVENANT, AND AGREEMENT is made this    day of      
              ,  2012, by Robert Foster having an address at 4835 Highway 158, in June Lake, CA 
93529 (AProperty Owner@), in favor of the County of Mono, a political subdivision of the State of 
California (ACounty@). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, Property Owner is the sole owner in fee simple of certain real property consisting of a 
home located at 4835 Highway 158, in June Lake, Mono County, California, APN 016-186-007, 
more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (the 
AProperty@); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Property having heretofore been designated Single Family Residential pursuant to 
the Land Use Element of the Mono County General Plan (“General Plan”); and 

2121

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

2 
 

 
WHEREAS, Property Owner has applied to County for an amendment to the General Plan to 
change the Property=s land use designation to ACommercial Lodging-High,@ so that the Property 
can be operated as a transient rental; and  
 
WHEREAS, County Planning Commission has issued a conditional use permit (ACUP@) to Property 
Owner for the purpose of approving of the use of the Property as a transient rental, effective only 
upon the Property being designated as Commercial Lodging-High pursuant to Mono County 
General Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Property Owner desires, provided that the Property is designated by County as 
Commercial Lodging-High, to restrict the Property so that it may be used only as a transient rental, 
unless Property Owner or its successor applies for and is duly approved by County for other or 
additional uses on the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, County is in agreement with the Property being restricted as set forth above and 
agrees to accept conveyance of the rights hereby granted and to honor the intentions of Property 
Owner as stated herein;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and the mutual covenants, terms, conditions, 
covenants, and restrictions contained herein, Property Owner hereby grants and conveys to County 
a deed restriction and covenant over the Property, of the nature and character and to the extent 
hereinafter set forth (ARestriction@). 
 
1) Purpose. It is the purpose of this Restriction to assure that the Property will be used only 
as a single family residence, or as a transient rental subject to the applicable CUP, and to prevent 
any use of the Property that is inconsistent therewith.  It is further intended that the Restriction 
made herein be considered a covenant and an enforceable equitable servitude upon the Property, 

2222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

3 
 

which shall be binding on all parties having or acquiring an interest in the Property, and their 
successors and assigns. 
 
 2) Rights of County. To accomplish the purpose of this Restriction the County shall have the 
right to prevent any activity on or use of the Property that is inconsistent with the purpose of this 
Restriction. 
 
3) Reserved Rights. Property Owner reserves to itself and its personal representatives, heirs, 
successors, lessees, and assigns, all rights accruing from its ownership of the Property, including 
the right to engage in or permit or invite others to engage in all uses of the Property that are not 
expressly prohibited herein and are not inconsistent with the purpose of the Restriction. 
 
4) County=s Remedy.  If County determines that Property Owner is in violation of the terms of 
this Restriction or that a violation is threatened, County shall give written notice to Property Owner 
of such violation and demand corrective action sufficient to cure the violation.  If Property Owner 
fails to cure the violation within 30 days after the receipt of notice thereof from County, County 
may bring an action at law or in equity in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the terms of 
this Restriction or otherwise enforce this agreement as provided by law.   
 
5)      Costs of Enforcement.  Any costs incurred by County in enforcing the terms of this 
Restriction against the Property Owner, including, without limitation, costs of suit and attorneys= 
fees, shall be borne by Property Owner.  
 
6) Access.  No right of access by the general public to any portion of the Property is 
conveyed by this Restriction.  
 
7) Costs and Liabilities.  Property Owner retains all responsibilities and shall bear all costs 
and liabilities of any kind related to the ownership, operation, upkeep, and maintenance of the 

2323



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

4 
 

Property. 
 
8) Extinguishment.  If circumstances arise in the future such as render the purpose of this 
Restriction impossible to accomplish, Property Owner may apply to County to have this Restriction 
extinguished. Property Owner understands and agrees that any such extinguishment may be 
granted in the discretion of the County and must be processed in compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  Alternatively, Property Owner may seek to have the Property 
re-designated as Residential. This Restriction will become eliminated and extinguished upon 
Property Owner applying and becoming duly approved by County, in accordance with applicable 
County standards in place at that time and in accordance with CEQA, to make uses at the 
Property which are further and/or other than those contemplated by this agreement.  
 
11)     Notices.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that either 
party desires or is required to give to the other shall be in writing and be either served personally 
or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:  To Property Owner: Robert 
Foster, PO Box 594, June Lake CA 93259. To County:  Mono County Community Development 
Director, P.O. Box 347, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546; or to such other address as either party from 
time to time shall designate by written notice to the other. 
 
12) Recordation. County shall record this instrument in a timely fashion in the official records of 
Mono County, California and may re-record it any time as may be required to preserve its right in 
this Restriction and Covenant. 
 
13) General Provisions.  
 

(a)  Controlling Law.  The interpretation and performance of this Restriction shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

2424



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

5 
 

(b)  Liberal Construction.  If any provision in this instrument is found to be ambiguous, an 
interpretation consistent with the purpose of this Restriction that would render the provision 
valid shall be favored over any interpretation that would render it invalid. 
  
(c)  Severability.  If any provision of this Restriction, or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance, is found to be invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this 
Restriction, or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than 
those as to which it is found to be invalid, as the case may be, shall not be affected 
thereby. 
 
(d)  Entire Agreement. This instrument sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the Restriction and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiation, understandings, 
or agreements relating to the Restriction, all of which are merged herein. 

 

(e)  No Forfeiture. Nothing contained herein will result in a forfeiture or reversion of 
Property Owner=s title in any respect. 
 
(f)  Successors. The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions of this Restriction shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective personal 
representative, heirs, successors, and assigns and shall continue as a servitude running 
with the Property. 

 

(g)  Counterparts. The parties may execute this instrument in two or more counterparts, 
which shall, in the aggregate be signed by both parties; each counterpart shall be deemed 
an original instrument as against any party who has signed it. In the event of any disparity 
between the counterparts produced, the recorded counterpart shall be controlling. 

 

2525



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

6 
 

14)    Effective Only Upon Designation as Commercial Lodging-High.  This agreement shall only 
become effective upon County=s approval of an amendment to the general plan to designate the 
Property ACommercial Lodging-High.@ 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Property Owner and County have set their hands on the day and year 
first above written. 
 

Robert Foster, Dated                     , Property Owner, 
 
By:                        , Trustee. 
By:                    , Trustee. 
 
County of Mono, County: 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
Its: ______________________________________.  
 
Schedule of Exhibits:  A - Legal Description of Property Subject to Restriction.  
 

2626



Mono County 
Community Development Department 

            PO Box 347 
 Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
(760) 924-1800, fax 924-1801 
    commdev@mono.ca.gov 

    Planning Division   
 

                      PO Box 8 
            Bridgeport, CA  93517 

   (760) 932-5420, fax 932-5431 
           www.monocounty.ca.gov 

 

Planning / Building / Code Compliance / Environmental / Collaborative Planning Team (CPT) 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) / Local Transportation Commission (LTC) / Regional Planning Advisory Committees (RPACs) 

October 11, 2012 
 
To: Mono County Planning Commission 
 
From: Courtney Weiche, Associate Planner 
 Gerry LeFrancois, Principal Planner 
 Stacey Simon, Assistant County Counsel 
 
Re: Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project including: 

1) Certify Final EIR and Mitigation Implementation and Monitoring Program 
2) Approve Conditional Use Permit 12-004 
3) Approve Variance 12-002 
4) Approve Reclamation Plan 12-001 
5) Recommend approval of Clarifying General Plan Amendment 12-003(b)  

 

I. RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution R12-XX taking the following actions: 
 
A. Adopt and certify the Final EIR and mitigation monitoring and reporting program for Mammoth 

Pacific I Replacement Project, finding that:  
1. In compliance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15090 (a): 

a. The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) has been completed in compliance 
with CEQA; 

b. The Final EIR was presented to the decision-making body of the lead agency, and that the 
decision-making body reviewed and considered the information contained in the Final 
EIR prior to approving the project; and 

c. The Final EIR reflects the lead agency's independent judgment and analysis. 
 
B. Make required findings and approve Use Permit application 12-004 subject to the Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program and Conditions of Approval; and 
 
C. Make required findings and approve Variance 12-002 subject to the Mitigation Monitoring and 

Reporting Program and Conditions of Approval; and 
 
D. Make required findings and approve Reclamation Plan 12-001, subject to the Mitigation Monitoring 

and Reporting Program and Conditions of Approval; and 
 
E.   Make required findings and recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve Clarifying General 

Plan Amendment 12-003 (b). 
 

II. PROJECT OVERVIEW, SETTING AND LAND USE 
The existing Mammoth Pacific Unit I (MP–I) project is a commercial geothermal development project 
operated by Mammoth Pacific L.P. (MPLP) and located near Casa Diablo Hot Springs.  The existing 
MP–I project consists of a binary power plant with a design capacity of about 14 megawatts (MW), a 
geothermal wellfield, production and injection fluid pipelines, and ancillary facilities that have been 
operating since 1984.  The existing MP-I power plant site is located approximately 1,200 feet northeast of 

2727



2 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

the intersection of U.S. Highway 395 and California State Route 203 on 90 acres of private (fee) land 
owned by Ormat Nevada, Inc. (Ormat), the parent company of MPLP.   The proposed plant site would be 
constructed and operated within the existing Casa Diablo geothermal complex  
 
The Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project (Project)  was proposed by MPLP to replace the aging MP-I 
poweir plant with a new, more modern and efficient binary power plant (M-1), while maintaining the 
existing geothermal wellfield, pipeline system and ancillary facilities.  The proposed M-1 replacement 
power plant would be capable of generating, on average, approximately 18.8 MW (net) of electricity.  No 
net change in the rate of geothermal fluid produced and supplying the existing Casa Diablo geothermal 
development complex would result, and no substantive change to the geothermal reservoir would occur as 
a result of the Project.  During M-1 plant startup operations, the existing MP-1 plant would continue to 
operate until the new M-1 plant becomes commercial, after which time the old MP-1 plant would be 
closed and dismantled.  The old MP-1 plant site would be converted to an equipment storage area as part 
of the decommissioning process and the entire site would be subject to a Reclamation Plan providing for 
ultimate return of the property to natural conditions.  The transition period during with both plants would 
overlap would be a period of up to two years from the date the M-1 plant begins startup operations, but 
would not involve any new geothermal extraction. 
 
The new M-1 plant site would be located to the east on the approximately 50-acre parcel, and within an 
area designated as Resource Extraction (RE) which “is intended to provide for protection of the 
environment and resource extraction activities . . . and for processing plants utilizing on-site materials or 
materials found in close proximity to the site.”  The existing MP-1 plant site decommissioning activities 
and establishment of a storage area, would be conducted on private land with a land use designation 
(LUD) of Resource Management (RM) which is intended “to recognize and maintain a wide variety of 
values in the lands outside existing communities,” including “geothermal or mineral resources.” 
 
 
SURROUNDING LAND USES 
The proposed plant site would be within an area circumscribed by the existing Casa Diablo geothermal 
complex, a group of three existing binary geothermal power plants located immediately northeast of the 
intersection of State Route 203 and Interstate Highway 395, and about two miles east of the Town of 
Mammoth Lakes. The off-site private lands in the Casa Diablo area predominantly designated as “Open 
Space”, while the public lands in the Casa Diablo area are predominantly designated Resource 
Management.  
 
PROJECT COMPONENTS 
To summarize, the following approvals are required from Mono County for the Project: 
 

 A Conditional Use Permit for the M-1 replacement plant (including the granting of a height 
exception for mechanical appurtenances) and decommissioning/reuse of the existing MP-I plant 
site as a storage area; 

 A Variance for setback reductions from property line(s); setback reductions from streams 
designated by a blue line on USGS topographic maps (for structures within the 5.7-acre proposed 
M-1 plant site); and for grading of the existing MP-I plant site for use as an equipment storage 
area; 

 A Variance to construct an aboveground electrical transmission line; 
 A Grading Permit; 
 Building Permits; and 
 A Reclamation Plan. 

 
A clarifying General Plan revision is also proposed, but is not required for approval of the Project. 
 
 

2828



3 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

PROJECT OBJECTIVE 
MPLP's specific objectives for the Project are: (a) to optimize the amount of electrical energy that can be 
generated from the available geothermal resources; (b) to replace the existing MP–I plant with a new, 
more modern and efficient binary power plant; and (c) to ensure continuous power generation and 
maximize utilization of the geothermal resource. 
 
The objectives of Mono County for preparing this EIR are to comply with the requirements of CEQA and 
to evaluate the potential environmental impacts of the Project consistent with the requirements of CEQA 
and the County General Plan. 
 

III. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 12-004 
HEIGHT EXCEPTION 
Although the proposed M-1 geothermal plant would have a maximum height of approximately 35 feet 
above the excavated ground level, there are several mechanical appurtenances (two purge tanks, of about 
36 inches in length and 24 inches in diameter, a two-inch diameter pipe, and a one-inch diameter 
lightning mast/rod) that extend to approximately 40 feet in height. This would exceed the permitted 
maximum height of 35 feet; however, Mono County regulations allow for exceptions in the cases of 
mechanical appurtenances. These mechanical appurtenances are a part of this CUP and are evaluated on 
pp 4-2 – 4-35 of the RDEIR.  As described in the EIR, these appurtenances would be nearly completely 
obscured by vegetation and the super-structure of the main plant and would be colored to be blend with 
the existing background. The analysis shown in the EIR demonstrates the project would preserve scenic 
vistas and would not have any impact on surrounding properties. 
 

IV. VARIANCE 12-002 
SETBACKS 
The proposed Project includes a request for a variance from two required setbacks; 100 feet from the 
south line and 500 feet from the surface watercourse. The proposed M-1 replacement plant location was 
specifically chosen, and the requested variances are needed, to avoid the many geological and 
geotechnical constraints present in the project parcel area.  The proposed location is necessary to 
minimize risks to both the plant and its operating personnel and would not result in any significant 
environmental impacts.  
 
ABOVEGROUND PIPELINE 
The Project includes two proposals for the interconnection pipeline, both of which have been analyzed as 
part of the EIR. Much of the Project site consists of geothermal soils having elevated temperatures. 
Generally, underground transmission lines require properly designed thermal backfill to reduce heat 
buildup and consequent loss of electrical conductivity or even melting of the conduit.  However, such heat 
buildup in an underground transmission line crossing warm or hot areas in the soil cannot be mitigated 
with thermal backfill.  There would be no new overhead transmission line poles associated with either of 
the interconnection transmission line options and no significant visual or other impacts. 
 

V. CLARIFYING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 12-003(b) 
The County proposes to add clarifying language to the Conservation and Open Space Element of its 
General Plan, as well as to the land development regulations in the Land Use Element of its General Plan 
 
The pertinent language in the General Plan Land Use Element, land development regulations, section 
15.070 (B)(1)(d) reads:  

“No geothermal development located within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone shall occur within 500 
feet on either side of a surface watercourse (as indicated by a solid or broken blue line on U.S. 
Geological Survey 7.5- or 15-minute series topographic maps).”  

2929



4 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

The requirement of section 15.070(B)(1)(d) is also cited in the General Plan Conservation and 
Open Space Element as an action taken by the County to further the following water quality and 
hydrologic goals and policies: 
 

(1) To “establish a regulatory process with respect to both geothermal exploration and 
development that ensures that permitted projects are carried out with minimal or no 
adverse environmental impacts.” (Cons/Open Space Element p. V-37, Goal 1); and 
 
(2) “Geothermal exploration and development projects shall be sited, carried out and 
maintained by the permit holder in a manner that best protects hydrologic resources and 
water quality and quantity.” (Cons/Open Space Element, p. V-40, Objective D, Policy 1.) 

 
The County proposes to add clarifying language to the Conservation and Open Space Element to clearly 
identify Action 1.13 (supporting Goal 1 and Objective D, Policy 1) as being imposed by and implemented 
through section 15.070(B)(1)(d) of the Land Development Regulations and to clarify that the 500-foot 
setback from any surface watercourse is a land development regulation of the General Plan subject to 
variance in accordance with Chapter 33 and is not “imposed  twice” by virtue of being cited as an action 
taken in furtherance of the goals and polices set forth in the Conservation and Open Space Element. 
 
The proposed revisions are consistent with the County’s current and past interpretation of its own General 
Plan and with its intent upon adoption. There would be no substantive change to the General Plan. Future 
geothermal development would continue to be subject to the setback requirements of Section 15.070, 
unless a variance were granted. 
 
The proposed clarifying General Plan revision would not result in a significant impact to the 
environment, nor cause or increase any environmental impact associated with the Project or with any 
other project or activity in Mono County or within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone. Rather, it clarifies the 
existing meaning and intent of the General Plan, and preserves the setbacks imposed by section 
15.070(B)(1), along with the variance procedure for any future project involving geothermal development 
within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone.   
 

VI. RECLAMATION PLAN 
After the existing MP-I plant is dismantled, the plant facilities would be removed from the site, the site 
would be re-graded, covered with gravel and converted to a fenced equipment storage yard that would 
also be used periodically for overflow parking. This interim restoration of the MP-I plant site is described 
in the Reclamation Plan submitted to Mono County and provided in the agenda packet. In addition, site 
reclamation at the end of the Project is described in the Reclamation Plan which covers each of the 
geothermal projects on private land in the Casa Diablo geothermal development complex area (including 
the MP-I Project, the MP-II Project, and the M-1 Replacement Plant). The Reclamation Plan provides 
prescriptive measures for restoration of the entire area disturbed by these projects to a natural condition at 
the end of the project life.   
 

VII. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  
An Initial Study of the potential environmental effects of the Project was prepared, a Notice of 
Preparation (NOP) of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) was filed with the California State 
Clearinghouse and Planning Unit within the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and a 
public notice of intent to prepare an EIR for the Project was distributed. The notice was published in local 
newspapers on or about February 4, 2011. It was also distributed to responsible and trustee agencies and 
interested members of the public identified on the Mono County interested party list. A public scoping 
meeting for the Project was conducted on Thursday, February 17, 2011. Mono County received a total of 
two written comment letters on the Project following the public notice. 
 

3030



5 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
As a result of the Initial Study, and comments received from responsible/trustee agencies and the public 
during scoping for the DEIR, the following environmental resource topics were identified for detailed 
environmental assessment.  

 Aesthetics 
 Air Quality 
 Biological Resources 
 Cultural Resources 
 Geology and Soils 
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 Hydrology and Water Quality 
 Noise 

The Draft EIR was originally circulated for public review from July 13, 2011 to August 26, 2011. 
 
REVISED DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (RDEIR) 
After review of comments made on the earlier DEIR, it was determined that significant new information 
was needed to address comments on the proposed Project. Under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), recirculation of a Draft EIR is required when significant new information changes the EIR. 
As such, a decision to revise and recirculate the Draft EIR was made to provide the public an opportunity 
to review additional Project information provided by the Applicant; new baseline biological resources 
information; and supplemental documentation not provided with the earlier published Draft EIR. 
 
A Revised Draft Environmental Impact Report (RDEIR) was prepared. The RDEIR provided 
Appendices A through L to support the document. The RDEIR substantially amended the earlier Draft 
EIR such that reviewers were invited to submit new comments on the RDEIR for written response in this 
FEIR. The previous comments received on the earlier Draft EIR remain part of the administrative record, 
but the previous comments do not require written response. 
 
A shortened 30-day public review period for the Recirculated Draft EIR was requested and approved by 
the State Clearinghouse. The public review period began at 8:00 a.m. on Friday, February 24, 2012 and 
ended at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, March 26, 2012. 
 
SECOND REVISED DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (RDEIR2) 
In response to a concern raised by a commenter on the RDEIR, the County proposed to clarify the 
language of the Land Use and Conservation/Open Space Elements. In order to evaluate these proposed 
clarifications, a new Land Use/Planning section was added to the RDEIR to provide information for 
public review and comment. This second RDEIR (RDEIR2) was recirculated to provide the public and 
interested agencies with the opportunity to review and comment on the supplemental information 
provided in the new Land Use/Planning section and the associated changes to the RDEIR. Only the new 
Land Use/Planning section and the related changes to the text of the RDEIR were circulated for public 
review. Comments previously received on the RDEIR that pertain to other subjects have also been 
responded to and are addressed in the Final EIR, along with any agency/public comments on the 
RDEIR2. 
 
All of the new or supplemental information to the RDEIR was analyzed as appropriate in various sections 
of the RDEIR2. The RDEIR2 provided Appendices M through O to support the document. The new or 
revised information included: 

 Land Use/Planning Section 4.10; 
 Cumulative Impact Land Use/Planning Section 5.3.10; and 

3131



6 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

 Assorted changes to earlier RDEIR text needed for document consistency with the added Land 
Use/Planning sections.  

A shortened 30-day public review period for the RDEIR2 was requested and approved by the State 
Clearinghouse. However, the County subsequently decided to extend the shortened review period to the 
normal 45-day public review period. The public review period began at 8:00 a.m. on Friday, July 6, 2012 
and the extended 45-day public review period ended at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, August 20, 2012. 
 
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
The Final EIR allows the public and Lead Agency to review revisions to the RDEIR/RDEIR2, comments, 
and responses to comments before approval of the project. The FEIR, which includes the RDEIR and 
RDEIR2, incorporated by reference) will serve as the environmental document used by Mono County 
when considering approval of the Project. After completing the FEIR and before approving the Project, 
the Lead Agency must make the following three certifications (CEQA Guidelines Section 15090). 
 

1. The FEIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA; 
2. The FEIR was presented to the decision-making body of the Lead Agency, and the decision-

making body reviewed and considered the information in the FEIR prior to approving the project; 
and 

3. The FEIR reflects the Lead Agency’s independent judgment and analysis. 

 
VIII. LDTAC REVIEW 
The Land Development Technical Advisory Committee (LDTAC) has met to consider the project 
application and the project Conditions of Approval and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. 
LDTAC recommendations have been reflected in the project mitigation measures and/or Conditions of 
Approval.  
 
The Community Development Director and Economic Development Director have also both reviewed and approved 
the staff report and various findings for the project.  
  

IX. FINDINGS  
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDINGS 
If the Commission decides to approve Conditional Use Permit 12-004, the Commission should make the 
findings contained in Exhibit C to Planning Commission Resolution R12-XX. 
 
VARIANCE FINDINGS 
If the commission decides to approve Variance 12-002, the Commission should make the findings 
contained in Exhibit B to Planning Commission Resolution R12-XX. 
 
RECLAMATION FINDINGS 
If the Commission decides to approve Reclamation Plan 12-001, the Commission should make the 
findings contained in Exhibit D to Planning Commission Resolution R12-XX. 
 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 
If the Commission decides to recommend approval of General Plan Amendment 12-003(b), the 
Commission should make the findings contained in Exhibit E to Planning Commission Resolution R12-
XX. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL FINDINGS PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE SECT. 15091 
If the Commission decides to adopt and certify the Final EIR, the Commission should make the findings 
contained in Exhibit A to Planning Commission Resolution R12-XX. 

3232



7 
Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 

October 11, 2012 

 
 
 

X. ENCLOSURES  
 

1) Resolution R12- XX [including exhibits A, B, C, D, E and F] 
2) Reclamation Plan (including Landscape Plan) 
3) Outdoor Lighting Plan 
4) Black Eagle Consulting letter 
5) Economic Analysis provided by ORMAT 
6) Final EIR with Exhibits I, II, & III (CD copy enclosed & hard copy available upon request) 
7) Notice of Decision/Use Permit (including Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program) 

 
 
 

3333



 

Resolution R12- 05 
Mono County Planning Commission 

1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

 
 

RESOLUTION R12-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION  
CERTIFYING THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 

FOR THE MAMMOTH PACIFIC I REPLACEMENT PROJECT, 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, VARIANCE, AND RECLAMATION PLAN 
 FOR THE PROJECT, AND RECOMMENDING THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
APPROVE A CLARIFYING AMENDMENT TO THE MONO COUNTY GENERAL PLAN 

REGARDING GEOTHERMAL DEVELOPMENT  
WITHIN 500 FEET OF A MAPPED WATERCOURSE 

WHEREAS, the Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project proposes to replace the existing MP-1 
power plant, located near Casa Diablo Hot Springs, with a new, more modern and efficient binary power 
plant to be located on an adjacent site; to provide for reclamation and partial reuse of the existing power 
plant site; and to provide for the ultimate reclamation of all operations on the site, without altering the 
existing geothermal well field or changing the level of geothermal extraction (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Project includes approval of a Conditional Use Permit; approval of a variance from 
the 100-foot property-line and 500-foot stream setbacks applicable to geothermal development, authorization 
for the placement of an aboveground transmission pipeline, and a recommendation that the Board of 
Supervisors add clarifying language to the Mono County General Plan related to the 500-foot stream 
setback; and 

WHEREAS, Mono County has caused to be prepared an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Mono County Planning Commission did, on October 11, 2012,  hold a properly 
noticed and advertised public hearing to hear all testimony relevant to the Project, Final EIR, and approvals; 
and   

WHEREAS, based on the information provided in the draft and Final EIRs, public comment 
received on the Project, and taking into account the recommendations of staff, the Mono County Planning 
Commission desires to approve the Conditional Use Permit, grant the requested variance, approve the 
Reclamation Plan, and recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve the clarifying General Plan 
amendment.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Mono County Planning Commission hereby FINDS and RESOLVES that: 
 

1. A Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) has been completed for the Project in 
compliance with CEQA; and 
 

2. The Final EIR has been presented to the Planning Commission, which is the decision 
maker with respect to the Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Reclamation Plan for the 
Project and is the advisory body to the Board of Supervisors with respect to the proposed 
General Plan Amendment; and  

34



 

Resolution R12- 05 
Mono County Planning Commission 

2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

 
3. The Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the information contained in the Final 

EIR (and the draft EIRs) for the Project; and 

 
4. The Final EIR reflects the lead agency’s independent judgment and analysis; and  

 
5. The Final EIR has identified potentially significant effects of the project which, as the result of 

changes or alterations incorporated into the Project, have been avoided or reduced to a less-than-
significant level, as set forth in Exhibit A to this resolution, which is hereby incorporated by this 
reference as if fully set forth herein; and 

 
6. Potential alternatives to the proposed Project are either not feasible or do not provide 

environmental benefit in comparison to the proposed Project, as set forth in Exhibit A; and 
 

7. The Mono County Planning Commission does hereby certify and adopt the Final EIR and the 
mitigation monitoring and reporting program for the Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mono County Planning Commission hereby: 
 

1. Makes each of the findings set forth in Exhibit B to this resolution, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, related to approval of a variance from 
specified provisions of the Land Development Regulations and Land Use Designation; and 
 

2. Approves Variance 12-002 authorizing a variance from the 100-foot property line setback, a 
variance from the 500-foot surface watercourse setback, and a variance from the provisions 
of section 11.010 of the General Plan related to the undergrounding of utilities for the 
Project, as described in the EIR. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mono County Planning Commission hereby: 
 

1. Makes each of the findings set forth in Exhibit C to this resolution, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, related to approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit for the Project; and 
 

2. Approves Conditional Use Permit 12-004 for the Project, including all Conditions of 
Approval, the Mitigation Monitoring, and Reporting Program, and a height exception for 
mechanical appurtenances, as described in the EIR. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mono County Planning Commission hereby: 
 

1. Makes each of the findings set forth in Exhibit D to this resolution, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, related to approval of a Reclamation 
Plan for the Project; and  

35



 

Resolution R12- 05 
Mono County Planning Commission 

3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

 
2. Approves Reclamation Plan 12-001 for the Project. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Mono County Planning Commission hereby: 
 

1. Finds that the proposed change to the text of the Land Development Regulations of the 
General Plan in General Plan Amendment 12-003(b) is consistent with the General Plan and 
any applicable area plan as set forth in Exhibit E to this resolution, which is attached hereto 
and hereby incorporated by reference; and 
 

2.  Recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Final EIR and GPA 12-003(b), as 
set forth in Exhibit F to this resolution, which clarifies existing language in the Mono 
County General Plan related to setbacks from a surface watercourse applicable to 
geothermal development.  

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of October, 2012, by the following vote of the Planning 
Commission, County of Mono: 
 
 AYES :   
 
 NOES :  
 
 ABSENT :  
 
 ABSTAIN :  
 
                    ________________________________ 
       Steve Shipley, Chair 
  
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________              
CD Ritter                                                             Stacey Simon  
Secretary of the Planning Commission Assistant County Counsel 
 

36



1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT FINDINGS PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 
SECTION 15091 

MAMMOTH PACIFIC I REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 

 
The State of California Public Resources Code Section 21081 and CEQA Guidelines Section 
15091 require a public agency, prior to approving a project, to identify significant impacts of the 
project and make one or more of three allowable findings for each of the significant impacts: 
 

 The first allowable finding is that “[c]hanges or alterations have been required in, or 
incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant 
environmental effect as identified in the Final EIR.” (State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15091, subd. (a)(1)) 

 The second allowable finding is that “[s]uch changes or alterations are within the 
responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and not the agency making the 
finding.  Such changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be 
adopted by such other agency.” (State CEQA Guidelines, Section 15091, subd. (a)(2)) 

 The third allowable finding is that “[s]pecific economic, legal, social, technological, or 
other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained 
workers, make infeasible the mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the 
Final EIR.” (State CEQA Guidelines, Section 15091 (a)(3)) 

After reviewing the Final EIR and the public record on the Project, the County hereby makes the 
findings in Parts I through IV of this document regarding the significant effects of the Mammoth 
Pacific I Replacement Project (Project) pursuant to Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines.   

All effects of the Project on the environment are hereby found to be not significant after 
mitigation.  Cumulative impacts of the Project in conjunction with other related approved, 
proposed, or projects currently under construction have been addressed where applicable, and 
would not be significant after mitigation.   
 
PART I: FINDINGS RELATIVE TO POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS 
 
Because certain effects of the Project were analyzed in the EIR as potentially significant and 
because project design features, alterations, or mitigation measures have been imposed which 
avoid or further reduce those effects, the Planning Commission hereby finds as follows: 
 
A. Aesthetics 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could substantially degrade the 
existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings if not subject 
to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features designed to screen 
the proposed M-1 plant from public view.  These features consist of earth-tone 
painting, pine tree preservation, a restriction on the height of materials stored, 
and placement of the interconnection transmission line near ground level.  In 
addition, a Landscape Plan has been prepared and must be approved by the 

3737



2 
 

County.  The Landscape Plan identifies specific visual screening measures to be 
implemented at the storage yard to be located in the footprint of the existing MP-
I plant, which is to be removed.  With implementation of these design features 
and the protection measure, Project impacts would be less than significant and no 
mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could create a new source of 
substantial light or glare that would adversely affect nighttime views in the area 
if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features to reduce nighttime 
visibility caused by lighting of the proposed M-1 plant and associated facilities.  
These features consist of downward projection of power plant lighting and 
preparation/implementation of an Outdoor Lighting Plan for the Project in 
conformance with County Dark Sky Regulations.  With implementation of these 
design features, Project impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation 
is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

B. Air Quality 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable air quality plan if not subject to design features, 
alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features designed to 
eliminate the potential for conflicts with applicable Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District (GBUAPCD) plans and policies, including obtaining 
an Authority to Construct permit for the proposed M-1 plant and permits to 
operate the diesel fueled emergency generator and firewater pump generator.  All 
permits shall be obtained from the GBUAPCD.  With implementation of these 
design features, Project impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation 
is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could result in the violation of an air 

quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing air quality violation if 
not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features to ensure that air 
pollution emissions from the site are reduced to the maximum extent practicable.  
These features consist of installing a vapor recovery unit to capture motive fluid 
that could otherwise be released during plant maintenance and compliance with 
fugitive dust emission control measures during Project construction activity.  

3838



3 
 

With implementation of these design features, Project impacts would be less than 
significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
C. Biological Resources 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could have a substantial adverse 
effect on riparian habitat and/or federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act if not subject to design features, alterations, 
or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features designed to reduce 
soil erosion and sedimentation impacts associated with runoff from the Project 
site.  These design features include installation of a subsurface retention basin at 
the proposed M-1 plant site, implementation of erosion control/stormwater 
construction best management practices (BMPs) in the interim site reclamation 
plan for the MP-I plant site, and implementation of M-1 plant site construction 
and post-construction BMPs.  With implementation of these design features, 
Project impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could interfere with the movement of 

native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife 
nursery sites if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features intended to reduce 
potential interference with fish and wildlife.  These design features include (a) 
implementation of a 15 mile-per-hour speed limit for all on-site construction 
vehicles; (b) construction and operation noise reduction measures including use 
of noise attenuation devices on construction equipment; (c) incorporation of 
erosion/sedimentation and spill control measures into the Project design, 
including a Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan; (d) 
avoiding removal of existing trees in the placement of the interconnection 
injection pipeline; (e) prohibition on the installation of linear barriers to 
movement of deer or other wildlife between the existing plant and the 
replacement plant; (f) construction of a new deer crossing; (f) maintenance of 
existing mule deer movement corridor on northeastern side of complex; (g) 
fencing of waste facilities to avoid attracting potential predators; (h) shielding of 
lighting; (i) dog leash requirements; (j) slope limitations to prevent wildlife from 
being trapped in basins; (k) installation of passive raptor deterrents, and (l) 
revegetation requirements.  With implementation of these design features, Project 
impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 

3939



4 
 

3. Potentially Significant Effect:  In the absence of the Project, there could be an 
adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game 
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service if not subject to design features, alterations, or 
mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  MPLP is currently conducting the hydrologic and biological 
monitoring prescribed by Mono County General Plan with respect to its existing 
operations, but existing permit requirements for such monitoring only exist under 
the MP-II and PLES-I project approvals.  Should these two projects be 
abandoned prior to the abandonment of the MP-I Replacement Project, there 
would be no permit requirement to continue the prescribed monitoring for what 
could be an extended MP-I project life.  Should the existing geothermal resource 
production and injection activities from the MP-I Plant result in changes in the 
temperature, flow rate or quality of the Hot Creek headsprings supporting the 
critical habitat of the Owens tui chub, then this could be a potentially significant 
impact under CEQA.  Bio Mitigation Measure 1, which subjects the Project to 
the applicable hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the County General Plan, would ensure that such 
monitoring continues.   

 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact from existing operations to a level 
that is less than significant. 

 
4. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could have an adverse effect, either 

directly or through habitat modifications, on species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation 
measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  As a result of the findings of the baseline biological 
resources survey, multiple actions were identified which, if implemented, would 
further reduce the potentially adverse effects of the Project on biological 
resources. These actions and others identified by this assessment have been 
compiled into required Bio Protection Measures 2 through 16.  With 
implementation of these protection measures, Project impacts would remain less 
than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
D. Cultural Resources 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a historical or archaeological resource, may directly 
or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource, and/or may disturb 
undocumented human remains if not subject to design features, alterations, or 
mitigation measures. 

4040



5 
 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a design feature intended to reduce 
any potential impact to historical, archaeological, or paleontological resources 
that may be encountered at the Project site.  This design feature requires the 
implementation of all environmental protection measures to reduce the adverse 
effects of the Project on cultural resources that were recommended in the 
baseline cultural resources survey reports prepared for the Project area.  In 
addition, Cultural Protection Measure 1 is required to ensure that any human 
remains encountered during the construction phase of the Project are properly 
treated.  With implementation of this design feature and protection measure, 
Project impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
 
E. Geology and Soils 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could expose structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss involving rupture of a 
known earthquake fault, strong seismic ground shaking, or seismic-related 
ground failure if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation 
measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features intended to reduce 
any potential adverse effects resulting from seismic activity in the surrounding 
vicinity.  These design features would require the implementation of all measures 
recommended in the geotechnical site investigation reports to mitigate impacts 
due to geotechnical, soils, and geologic constraints; as well as require that all 
Project structures be constructed to meet applicable earthquake safety codes and 
the 2010 Uniform Building Code adopted by the County.  In addition, Cultural 
Protection Measure 1 is required to ensure that any human remains encountered 
during the construction phase of the Project are properly treated.  With 
implementation of these design features, Project impacts would be less than 
significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
F. Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could create a hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a design feature requiring that no 
hazardous materials, chemicals, or wastes be stored in the new storage yard to be 
constructed in the footprint of the decommissioned MP-I plant.  With 
implementation of this design feature, Project impacts would be less than 
significant and no mitigation is required. 
 

4141



6 
 

Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could create a hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment if not subject to 
design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements design features requiring that (a) the 
power plant site be designed and constructed to prevent fluids from leaving the 
site and to prevent runoff from being channeled or directed in an unnatural way 
so as to cause erosion or siltation; (b) install and maintain a system of pressure 
and flow sensing devices capable of detecting leaks and spills and regular 
inspection of all lines; (c) include the M-1 plant site and operations within the 
existing hazardous material management and emergency response program at the 
Casa Diablo geothermal complex; and (d) include the M-1 plant and operations 
within the existing fire prevention and suppression program at the Casa Diablo 
geothermal complex.  With implementation of these design features, Project 
impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

G. Hydrology and Water Quality 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could provide additional sources of 
polluted runoff if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation 
measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project shall implement design features designed to 
reduce soil erosion and sedimentation impacts associated with runoff from the 
Project site.  These design features include installation of a subsurface retention 
basin at the proposed M-1 plant site, implementation of erosion 
control/stormwater construction best management practices (BMPs) in the 
interim site reclamation plan for the MP-I plant site, and implementation of M-1 
plant site construction and post-construction BMPs.  With implementation of 
these design features, Project impacts would be less than significant and no 
mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could degrade water quality if not 

subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 

Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a design feature to reduce the 
potential for pollution to reach surface drainages.  This design feature includes 
incorporation of erosion/sedimentation and spill control measures into the Project 
design, including a Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan.  
The power plant site must also be designed and constructed to prevent spills from 
leaving the site and to prevent runoff from being channeled or directed in an 

4242



7 
 

unnatural way so as to cause erosion or siltation.  In addition to this design 
feature, implementation of Hydro Mitigation Measures 1 and 2 is required in 
order to provide additional spill containment and emergency response planning at 
the Project site.  Hydro Mitigation Measure 3, which would subject the Project to 
the applicable hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the County General Plan, (to which the existing MP-1 
plant is not currently subject) will further enhance such protections.   
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
3. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could violate waste discharge 

requirements if not subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 

Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a design feature to avoid the 
alteration of or discharge of material to the existing stream channel crossing the 
site.  No element of the project construction will result in the alteration of, or 
discharge of fill material to, the blue-line drainage channel that crosses the site 
between the existing MP-I and proposed M-1 plant sites, adjacent to Old 
Highway 395.  Prior to commencement of construction, the Applicant shall 
provide to the County the proposed engineering design for the road crossing 
which demonstrates to the County that no impact to this drainage channel would 
occur as a result of project construction.  With implementation of this design 
feature, Project impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is 
required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

H. Noise 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could result in a substantial temporary 
or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the Project vicinity above levels 
existing without the Project if not subject to design features, alterations, or 
mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project shall implement design features to reduce noise 
associated with Project construction activities.  These design features limit 
construction activities to daylight hours, require on-site construction equipment 
to be equipped with noise attenuation devices, and require all construction 
activities and normal Project operations to comply with applicable County noise 
requirements.  With implementation of these design features, Project impacts 
would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
I. Cumulative Effects 
 

1. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing 
development in the vicinity to create a new source of substantial light or glare 

4343



8 
 

that would adversely affect nighttime views in the area if not subject to design 
features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a protection measure to reduce 
nighttime lighting within the Casa Diablo geothermal complex.  This protection 
measure requires that all projects within the Casa Diablo geothermal complex 
comply with applicable County lighting standards.  With implementation of this 
protection measure, cumulative impacts would be less than significant and no 
mitigation is required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
2. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing 

development in the vicinity to result in the violation of an air quality standard or 
contribute substantially to an existing air quality violation if not subject to design 
features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements a protection measure to ensure that 
fugitive dust emissions from the site are reduced to the maximum extent 
practicable.  This measure restricts Project-related vehicle speeds on all unpaved 
access roads to 15 miles per hour.  With implementation of this protection 
measure, cumulative impacts would be less than significant and no mitigation is 
required. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
3. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing 

development in the vicinity to interfere with the movement of native resident or 
migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory 
wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites if not subject 
to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The Project implements Cumulative Bio Mitigation Measure 
1 to reduce potential interference with fish and wildlife.  This mitigation requires 
that constraints to wildlife movement through the Casa Diablo Hot Springs area 
be evaluated as part of any new development project proposed in the area.  
Measures shall be included as part of each new development project that would 
prevent the respective project from becoming a substantial obstacle to wildlife 
movement through or around the respective proposed development area. With 
implementation of this mitigation measure, cumulative impacts would be reduced 
to a less than significant level. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
4. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing 

development in the vicinity to have an adverse effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the 

4444



9 
 

California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service if not 
subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  The storage of water in lined wellfield basins would 
continue to attract wildlife and has the potential for similar cumulative impacts 
on wildlife as a result of any wellfield expansion associated with new geothermal 
development that is not a part of the Project.  The existing wellfield could be 
expanded by the addition of new wells and well sites to provide the additional 
geothermal fluid needed to support the proposed CD-4 power plant.  This impact 
could be cumulatively significant if future lined well site basins are constructed 
in a manner that prevents wildlife from escaping from the basins.  Cumulative 
Bio Mitigation Measure 2 is therefore required for County approved projects and 
should be considered as a requirement by federal agencies as a stipulation for 
approval of geothermal projects on public land in the vicinity of Casa Diablo Hot 
Springs.  With implementation of this mitigation measure, cumulative impacts 
would be reduced to a less than significant level. 

 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 
 

5. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing 
development in the vicinity to have an adverse effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service if not 
subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 
 
Statement of Facts:  MPLP is currently conducting the hydrologic and biological 
monitoring prescribed by Mono County General Plan, but existing permit 
requirements for such monitoring only exist under the MP-II and PLES-I project 
approvals.  Should these two projects be abandoned prior to the abandonment of 
the MP-I Replacement Project, there would be no permit requirement to continue 
the prescribed monitoring for what could be an extended MP-I project life.  
Hydro Mitigation Measure 3, would subject the Project to the applicable 
hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program requirements 
set forth in the County General Plan, preventing such a lapse from occurring.   

 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
6. Potentially Significant Effect:  The Project could combine with existing and/or 

proposed geothermal development in the vicinity to degrade water quality if not 
subject to design features, alterations, or mitigation measures. 

 
Statement of Facts:  Should the continued geothermal resource production and 
injection activities from the MP-I Project, in combination with other existing and 
future geothermal power plant projects in the Hot Creek Buffer Zone, result in 
changes in the temperature, flow rate or quality of the Hot Creek headsprings 
used for Hot Creek Fish Hatchery operations, then this could be a potentially 
significant impact under CEQA.  Cumulative Hydro Mitigation Measure 3, 
which would subject all existing and future geothermal power plant projects in 

4545



10 
 

the Hot Creek Buffer Zone, or in the vicinity of Casa Diablo Hot Springs, to the 
applicable hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the County General Plan, would reduce this potential 
impact to a less than significant level. 
 
Finding:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into the 
Project which reduces this potential impact to a level that is less than significant. 

 
PART II: FINDINGS RELATIVE TO UNAVOIDABLE SIGNIFICANT 

ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS 
 
No unavoidable significant environmental effects would result from implementation of the 
Project. 
 
PART III: FINDINGS RELATIVE TO ALTERNATIVES 
 
1. No Project Alternative:  If the Project is denied, the existing MP–I power plant would not 

be replaced by the new technology proposed for the Project, and the more efficient 
conversion of the available geothermal heat energy to electrical energy afforded by the 
proposed replacement plant technology and equipment would not be realized.  The aging 
MP–I power plant would be expected to continue to operate as long as repair and 
restoration of the facility remains economically practical, but the long-term continuing 
utilization of the MP-I project geothermal resources could be shortened due to eventual 
equipment failure.  The No Project Alternative would not meet most of the basic project 
objectives.  Objectives that would not be met include (a) Applicant’s objectives: to 
optimize the amount of electrical energy that can be generated from the available 
geothermal resources, and to ensure continuous power generation and maximize 
utilization of the geothermal resource …; and (b) the County goals, policies and 
objectives: to permit the productive and beneficial development of alternative energy 
resources, including geothermal resources; and to ensure the orderly and sound 
economic development of geothermal resources... 

 
FINDING: The No Project Alternative is infeasible because it is inconsistent with and 
does not meet project objectives. 

 
2. Alternative Power Plant Location (North Site):  The selected North Site Alternative 

would be on public land administered by the USFS located north of the existing SCE 
substation and east of the proposed Casa Diablo IV Geothermal Development Project 
(CD–4) power plant site.  It is assumed that the North Site Alternative would be 
constructed within an approximately 5.7-acre footprint essentially the same as that 
described for the Project.  An approximately 600-foot interconnection transmission line 
would need to be constructed from the alternative plant site to the existing SCE 
substation.  In addition, new production and injection fluid pipelines would need to be 
constructed to the North Site Alternative plant site.  The new pipelines would be assumed 
to parallel the pipeline route of the proposed CD–4 Project from the existing MP–I plant 
site to the North Site Alternative plant site – a distance of about one mile.  The 
construction, MP–I decommissioning, operations, and eventual site reclamation of the 
North Site Alternative geothermal development would be essentially the same as those 
activities described for the Project with only minor site–specific adjustments.  Approval 
for development on the North Site Alternative would require NEPA review and approval 
from federal agencies. 

4646



11 
 

 
FINDING:  The North Site Alternative would result in very similar impacts to those 
identified for the proposed Project.  However, selection of the North Site Alternative 
plant site would require construction of approximately one mile of new geothermal 
pipeline corridor resulting in greater impacts on biological resources and more 
construction related air emissions.  The location of the North Site Alternative plant site 
would be within a Jeffrey Pine forested area and would be susceptible to greater potential 
wildland fire hazard than the proposed M-1 plant site.  This was determined to be a 
potentially significant impact.  The North Site Alternative power plant site would be less 
visible from major roadways than the proposed Project plant site, but visual impacts were 
not determined to be significant from either of the plant sites.  The proposed Project is 
considered environmentally superior to the North Site Alternative. 

 
3. Identification of the Environmentally Superior Alternative:  The proposed Project, as 

amended by the conditions and mitigation/protection measures prescribed in the EIR, is 
the environmentally superior alternative based on the discussion and findings above. 

 

4747



1 
 

Exhibit B 
Variance 12-002 

Findings and Rationale 
 

A. Because of special circumstances (other than monetary hardship) applicable to the 
property, including its size, shape, topography, location, or surroundings, the strict 
application of the provision of the land use designations or land development regulations 
deprives such property of privileges (not including the privilege of maintaining a 
nonconforming use or status) enjoyed by other property in the vicinity and in an identical 
land use designation.  
 
1. Setbacks.  The proposed Project includes a request for a variance from two required 

setbacks; 100 feet from the south line and 500 feet from a surface watercourse. The 
proposed M-1 replacement plant location was specifically chosen, and the requested 
variances are needed, to avoid the many geological and geotechnical constraints present 
in the Project parcel area.  As described by Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. (BEC) in its 
review of the Project, provided by letter dated September 7, 2012, (the “BEC Letter”) the 
proposed location is necessary to minimize risks to both the plant and its operating 
personnel.  

 
Specifically, a number of geologic hazards are inherent to the surrounding areas on the 
parcel. To the north and east of the proposed plant location (away from the south property 
line) are extremely hot soils as well as active steam vents and associated weak soils. 
These conditions are hazardous to both the personnel and the plant equipment. Moving 
the replacement plant north would also greatly increase the size of the cut slope and 
raises the plant elevation so that both would be more visible from Highway 395.  
 
Moving the site to the south would only cause the plant to be closer to the property line 
and would place critical structures on highly compressible soils, unsuitable for 
conventional foundation support or even placement of the necessary fill. Moving the site 
to the west (including its current location) would bring it even closer to the intermittent 
stream as well as an active, unnamed fault located about 0.1 miles to the west of the 
western boundary of the proposed M-1 replacement site. There are active steam vents 
associated with this fault that must be avoided.  
 
Other properties within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone are currently developed with 
geothermal facilities (as described in section 5.1.1 and figure 38 of the RDEIR) or 
proposed for future development and thus enjoy the privileges of such use.  Because 
those properties are not subject to the same geological and geophysical constraints, such 
uses are conforming. 
 
2.   Aboveground transmission line.  As noted in the RDEIR and the BEC Letter, much of 
the Project site consists of geothermal soils having elevated temperatures. Generally, 
underground transmission lines require properly designed thermal backfill to reduce heat 
buildup and consequent loss of electrical conductivity or even melting of the conduit.  
However, such heat buildup in an underground transmission line crossing warm or hot 
areas in the soil cannot be mitigated with thermal backfill and a variance to place the 
transmission line above ground is necessary and does not constitute a special privilege.  
(See BAC Letter, September 7, 2012).   
 

4848



2 
 

B. The grant of variance will not constitute a special privilege inconsistent with the limitations 
upon other properties in the vicinity and in the land use designation in which the property 
is situated. 
 
1.  Setbacks.  As illustrated in the BEC letter and in FEIR Drawing 1, development of the 
Project site is highly constrained as a result of steep slopes, fault zones, and geothermal 
soils/fumaroles. It is also bisected by an intermittent surface watercourse. The combination of 
these conditions is unique to the Project site, and other parcels designated RE and/or within 
the Hot Creek Buffer Zone are not similarly limited. In fact, several are already developed 
with geothermal facilities or proposed for such development. (See FEIR Figure 1 and RDEIR 
sections 5.1.1 and 5.1.2.)   
 
The only other private parcel within the Casa Diablo portion of the Hot Creek Buffer Zone, 
owned by LADWP, consists of 194 acres. The LADWP parcel has ample area available for 
geothermal development such as that proposed on the Project site (see FEIR Drawing 1).  
Accordingly, the grant of a variance for the proposed Project would not constitute a special 
privilege inconsistent with the limitations on other nearby or similarly-situated properties but 
instead, would put it on par with such properties.   

 
2. Aboveground transmission line. Mono County Land Development Regulations 
authorize the placement of distribution facilities such as the proposed pipeline underground 
without discretionary approval by the County.  (See Mono County General Plan, Section 
11.010(B).)  Those regulations provide for aboveground placement pursuant to director 
review permit or use permit if any one of four findings can be made.   (See Mono County 
General Plan, Section 11.010(D).) Alternatively, a variance may be granted to allow 
aboveground use where the conditions justifying a variance exist.  (See Mono County 
General Plan Chapter 33).  The proposed aboveground pipeline is capable of being approved 
pursuant to either procedure, as either of the required findings may be made.  Specifically, 
under Section 11.010(D)(1), the pipeline will not significantly disrupt the character of the 
area (See RDEIR sections 2.1.3 and 4.2.3 concluding that there will not be a significant visual 
impact associated with the Project or the aboveground pipeline; see also the discussion of the 
existing environment, indicating the presence of other above ground transmission lines and 
geothermal infrastructure in the vicinity.)  Likewise, the finding for aboveground placement 
under Section 11.010(D)(2) may be made since aboveground placement would decrease the 
line’s exposure to environmental hazards (i.e., heated soils) thus making it environmentally 
superior to undergrounding.  (See BEC Letter.)  Other private properties in the area meeting 
these (or the other listed) criteria are also to obtain approval for aboveground utilities 
pursuant to Section 11.010.   
 
Accordingly, the grant of a variance would not constitute a special privilege inconsistent with 
limitations imposed on other properties. 

 
C. The grant of variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property 

or improvements in the area in which the property is situated. 
 

1. Setbacks. A number of geologic hazards are inherent to the surrounding proposed M-1 
site location. The proposed location of the M-1 replacement plant would actually lessen 
any exposure to hazardous conditions and would minimize risks to both the plant and its 
operating personnel. (See BEC Letter.)  The adjoining property consists of thousands of 
acres of undeveloped land owned by the USFS.  The only other nearby development 

4949



3 
 

consists of similar geothermal operations. Accordingly, a minor variation from the 
property line setback would have no impact on improvements or property. 
 
And Project design features and required mitigation measures, including installation of a 
subsurface retention basin at the M-1 plant site, implementation of erosion 
control/stormwater construction best management practices (BMPs) and post-
construction BMPs, will reduce and avoid the possibility of hydrologic impacts to the 
intermittent stream on the site as discussed in section 4.8.3 of the EIR.  Finally, the 
Project involves no expansion in water use or use of the geothermal resources. As such, 
there is no impact to water quantity. 
 

2. Aboveground transmission line. The Project includes two proposals for the interconnection 
transmission line, both of which were analyzed in the EIR.  The RDEIR analysis 
concludes that there will not be a significant visual impact associated with the Project or 
the aboveground pipeline. (See sections 2.1.3 and 4.2.3; see also the discussion of the 
existing environment on page 2 of the RDEIR, which describes the presence of other 
above ground transmission lines and geothermal infrastructure in the vicinity.) Because 
either option would be located near ground level (either within an existing pipe rack or on 
its own T-bar supports and suspended approximately 2-3 feet above ground level) as 
opposed to overhead, visual impacts associated with either option would be virtually non-
existent. There would be no new overhead transmission line poles associated with either 
of the interconnection transmission line options. Indeed, placement of the transmission 
line underground presents a risk to the lines and to operation if such lines fail. 

 
D. The grant of variance will not be in conflict with established map and text of the general 

and specific plans and policies of the County. 
 

1. Setbacks.  As discussed in section 4.10.3 of the EIR, the 500-foot surface 
watercourse and 100-foot exterior property line setbacks are subject to variance in 
accordance with Chapter 33 of the General Plan.  The Project requires a variance 
from the 500-foot setback because, while it would be further from the same 
watercourse than the existing plant, the replacement plant would still be partially 
within that setback.  The granting of such a variance is not inconsistent with the text 
or maps of the General Plan, including but not limited to, the Energy Resources 
section of the Conservation and Open Space Element (Goal 1, Objective D, Policy 1, 
Action 1.13).  That section lists the 500-foot setback as an “action” to further the 
policy of protecting hydrologic resources.  The reference is not intended to prohibit 
the granting of an otherwise authorized setback variance where no hydrologic 
impacts would result, and does not “re-impose” the setback requirement already 
imposed.  Setbacks are classing development standards which may be adjusted  
through variance procedures where necessary due to site-specific constraints. Finally, 
the Project is designed, and is subject to mitigation measures, which avoid or 
minimize potential impacts to hydrologic resources by preventing fluids from 
reaching adjacent waterways and limiting geothermal extraction to existing levels, as 
discussed above and in section 4.8.3 of the EIR.  The proposed variance is consistent 
with the map and text of the General Plan as currently written and as proposed to be 
clarified by GPA 12-003(b).  
 
The variance from the 100-foot property line setback is also authorized in accordance 
with Chapter 33 of the General Plan and would not be in conflict with any program, 
policy, goal, or objective of the General Plan. 

5050



4 
 

 
2. Aboveground transmission line.  See discussion under finding B.2 above, which is 

incorporated by this reference.   
 

5151



1 
 

Exhibit C 
Use Permit 12-004 

Findings and Rationale 
 

I. USE PERMIT 
 

A. All applicable provisions of the Land Use Designations and Land Development Regulations 
are complied with, and the site of the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to 
accommodate the use and to accommodate all yards, walls and fences, parking, loading, 
landscaping and other required features. 

 
The existing MP-1 plant site decommissioning activities and the conversion of a portion of the site to a 
storage area, proposed as part of the Project, would be conducted on private land with a land use 
designation (LUD) of Resource Management (RM).  The RM designation is intended “to recognize and 
maintain a wide variety of values in the lands outside existing communities,” including “geothermal or 
mineral resources.” “Mining and geothermal exploratory projects” are explicitly “uses permitted subject 
to use permit” and other “similar” uses may also be permitted.  
 
The RM designation provides for a minimum parcel size of 40 acres, limits site disturbance to 10% (with 
a maximum lot coverage of 5%), and provides for maximum population density of 5.02 persons per 40 
acres.  The RM parcel consists of approximately 40 acres of privately-owned land, of which 
approximately 2.6 acres is presently disturbed (approximately 6.6%).  This level of disturbance is pre-
existing and would not be increased by the Project.  The ultimate decommissioning, reclamation and 
restoration of this site required by the Reclamation Plan is consistent with Resource Management intent 
of the designation to provide for low intensity rural uses that recognize and maintain the resource value of 
the parcel and would eliminate site disturbance. There would be no residential use of the property.  
 
The proposed new M-1 plant site would be located on the adjacent 50-acre parcel, which is designated as 
Resource Extraction (RE). The RE designation “is intended to provide for protection of the environment 
and resource extraction activities . . . and for processing plants utilizing on-site materials or materials 
found in close proximity to the site.” “Exploring, drilling, and development of geothermal resources” are 
explicitly “uses permitted subject use permit” and other “similar” uses may also be permitted uses. The 
M-1 replacement plant site construction and Project operations would be conducted entirely on private 
land with a LUD of RE. 
 
The RE designation provides for a minimum parcel size of 40 acres, prohibits residential uses (other than 
for an employee/caretaker) and references the setbacks established by section 15.070 for resource 
development (100 feet from interior public streets or from a property line, 500 feet from any adjacent 
private dwelling, institution, school, or other building or location used for public assemblage, and, for 
geothermal development within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone, 500 feet from a surface watercourse).  The 
Land Use Designations and Land Development Regulations function as the County’s zoning requirements 
and are subject to variance pursuant to Chapter 33 of the Mono County General Plan and State law.   
 
All project activities would occur more than 100 feet from any internal street and more than 500 feet from 
adjacent uses for public assemblage. The nearest dwelling, institution, or school is located within the 
Town of Mammoth Lakes approximately two miles to the west of the project site.  A public parking area 
located just to the east of US 395 and the Mammoth Lakes exit is greater than 500 feet from the project 
property line (Figure 19, Revised DEIR, February 2012). The project includes a request for a variance 
which would authorize a portion of the facility to be located within 100 feet of an external property line 
and within 500 feet of a surface watercourse.  Such variances are authorized by Chapter 33 of the Land 

5252



2 
 

Development Regulations and if granted consistent with those requirements, all provisions of the Land 
Use Designations and Land Development Regulations would be complied with. 
 
As described more fully in section 4.2.2 of the EIR, the Project meets applicable standards of the Land 
Development Regulations related to visual impacts. An Outdoor Lighting Plan has been provided for the 
Project site which meets the requirements of Chapter 23 of the General Plan, the County’s “Dark Sky 
Regulations,” to mitigate nighttime visibility of the facilities. In addition, a Landscape Plan has been 
submitted which provides additional visual screening of the Project site. Use Permit conditions require 
compliance with these plans.  All buildings, insulation jacketing, and visible structures would be painted 
to blend with the existing environment in order to minimize the visual impacts in the area and 
approximately six-foot-high fences would be constructed around the M-1 plant site and the M-1 plant 
substation to provide additional screening.  Site disturbance is limited and a Reclamation Plan which 
meets the requirements of Chapter 26 of the General Plan and will reduce and restore site disturbance has 
been submitted.  Compliance with the Reclamation Plan is a condition of project approval. Accordingly, 
the Project also meets applicable standards set forth in Section 08.010 through 08.060 Scenic Combining 
District and State Scenic Highway.   

Section 4.110 of the Land Development Regulations provides for a maximum building height of 35 feet, 
but allows for greater heights to be approved through the Director Review process or Use Permit process.  
The project involves approval, through the Use Permit process, of mechanical appurtenances which 
exceed 35 feet in height. (See additional discussion below in sections II.A and II.B.) 

Chapter 11 of the Land Development Regulations provides for the undergrounding of utilities, unless 
overhead placement is approved by Director Review permit, Use Permit, or variance.  The Conservation 
and Open Space Element, Visual Resources, Objective C, Policy 3, Actions 3.1 through 3.8 reference 
these requirements. The project proposes two possible locations for an aboveground interconnection 
transmission line, and the applicant has applied for a variance to allow for aboveground installation.  

The Project is in compliance with all other applicable provisions of the Land Use Designations and the 
Land Development Regulations of the Mono County General Plan.  

Further, the site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the use, and to accommodate all yards, 
walls, and fences, parking, loading, landscaping and other required uses. The site consists of 90 acres of 
privately-owned land bordered on all sides by publicly-owned land managed primarily for open space.   

B. The site for the proposed use relates to streets and highways adequate in width and type to 
carry the quantity and kind of traffic generated by the proposed use. 
 

As described in the EIR (see, e.g., sections 2.1.2, 2.1.6, and 3.3.8) the land uses at the project site would 
remain the same as under existing conditions. No additional employees would be added as a result of the 
plant replacement and, thus, no additional long-term vehicle traffic to or from the project site would be 
created and no long-term impact to the existing roadway circulation system in the area would result.  
 
Short-term construction traffic would increase in the immediate vicinity of the site, although the traffic 
volumes expected to be associated with Project construction would be light and existing volume-to-
capacity ratios at the U.S. Highway 395/SR 203 interchange are sufficient to accommodate this small 
temporary increase.   
 
The existing entrances to the Casa Diablo geothermal development complex would continue to provide 
adequate access to the new M-1 plant site. North and south U.S. Highway 395 off ramps onto State Route 

5353



3 
 

203 are located less than one-quarter mile southwest of the Project site. Access to the Project site would 
be via State Route 203 east to Antelope Springs Road, then north to Cutoff Road, then east to the existing 
paved access to the replacement plant site off of the Old Highway Road. Substation Road and Old 
Highway Road would be used as emergency access roads that lead to a locked gate which can be opened 
by emergency responders and is sufficient to support emergency vehicles, in accordance with the 
County’s Fire Safe Regulations (Chapter 22 of the Land Development Regulations). 
 
A new paved access road would be constructed from the onsite access road to the lower pad on which the 
M-1 plant would be constructed. Paved access roads would also be constructed along the north, south and 
west sides of the new M-1 plant site, which are specifically designed in width and type to carry the 
quantity and kind of traffic associated with the project.   

 
C. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or 

improvements in the area in which the property is located. 
 

The EIR for the Project has identified no significant impacts resulting from the proposed Project.  The 
proposed use is the same as currently exists on the site, with the exception that a new, more modern 
facility would replace the existing M-1 plant.  The new facility includes design features (including, but 
not limited to a landscaping plan, dark sky compliant lighting, and screening) not currently applicable to 
the existing facility. Without expanding the use of the geothermal resource or in any way increasing 
impacts to that resource, the proposed facility would increase the amount of geothermal energy generated 
on the site and reduce associated impacts.  (See EIR Project Description). 
 
The M-1 site is situated in an area where property and improvements are committed to similar compatible 
uses, including existing operating geothermal plants and well fields, the existing MP-1 plant proposed for 
decommissioning, and an SCE substation. The proposed use has been sited to minimize visual impacts 
from the State Scenic Highway, and when the existing plant is decommissioned, will have less of a 
detrimental visual presence than exists currently.  (See EIR section 4.2.3.) 
 
In addition, the proposed Project incorporates design features which will protect the public and property 
from the risks of fire, contamination, and other hazards.  Specifically, the M-1 replacement power plant 
site would be designed and constructed to prevent fluids from leaving the site and endangering adjacent 
properties or nearby waterways. Numerous engineering, fire-control and safety measures are integrated as 
part of the Project to prevent releases of n-pentane, to avert or control fires, and to respond to other 
emergencies.  (See e.g., EIR section 2.1.6.) 
 
A diesel-powered emergency generator would be installed on the M-1 plant site to provide emergency 
backup power to critical plan functions in the event of a power outage. Similarly, a diesel-powered 
firewater pump generator would be installed to provide power to the firewater pump during fire 
emergencies.  
 
In addition, MPLP has developed an integrated program to meet the following requirements, (see EIR 
section 2.1.6): California Accidental Release Prevention (CalARP) Program; EPA Risk Management Plan 
(RMP); OSHA Process Safety Management (PSM) Program for all three existing plants. Prior to delivery 
of n-pentane, MPLP would revise and update this program to reflect the new M-1 plant; Revise its 
existing Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan, in conformance with 40 CFR 112, to 
include the new M-1 plant; Update its Emergency Response Plan (ERP); Update its Hazardous Materials 
Business Plan (HMBP); A Permit for Authority to Construct and Permit to Operate would be obtained 
from the GBUAPCD 
 

5454



4 
 

There would be at least one employee “on call” at all times familiar with the ERP and would have the 
authority to commit the resources needed to carry out the contingency plan.  

 
D. The proposed use is consistent with the map and text of this General Plan and any 

applicable area plan. 
 

For a thorough discussion regarding the Project’s consistency with the General Plan see the analysis 
contained throughout the EIR, and particularly sections 4.10.2 and 4.10.3. The following summarizes the 
Project’s consistency with applicable maps, policies, land uses, and programs contained in the General 
Plan. 
 
The Project is consistent with General Plan maps designating the site for Resource Management (RM) 
and Resource Extraction (RE).  The RE designation (where the replacement plant would be located) “is 
intended to provide for protection of the environment and resource extraction activities.” “Exploration, 
drilling, and development of geothermal resources” are explicitly “uses permitted subject to use permit 
and other “similar uses may also be permitted.”  The RM designation (where the existing plant is located) 
is intended to “recognize and maintain a wide variety of values in the lands outside existing 
communities,” including “geothermal or mineral resources.”  “Mining and geothermal exploratory 
projects” are explicitly “uses permitted subject to use permit” and other “similar” uses may be permitted.   
 
The Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs of the Mono 
County General Plan.  General Plan goals encourage the productive and beneficial development of 
alternative energy, including geothermal resources, in manner which avoids or minimizes environmental 
impacts. The EIR concludes that there will be no significant environmental impacts as a result of the 
proposed Project.  General Plan policies allow consideration of national need for alternative energy and 
require the applicant to demonstrate the economic benefits of the Project.  (See Conservation and Open 
Space Element – Energy Resources.) The economic analysis of the Project describes those benefits.  

 
Objectives C and D of Goal 1 of the Energy Resources portion of the Conservation and Open Space 
Element establish procedures and direction for addressing biologic and associated hydrologic impact 
mitigation and monitoring requirements from geothermal exploration and development. Consistent with 
these policies, a baseline biological resource survey was conducted (Paulus 2011) and is provided as 
Appendix D of the EIR. The recommended measures and project design features of this report have been 
incorporated and are a part of the Project.  

The EIR concludes that there would be no significant impacts to visual resources as a result of the Project 
and that current visual impacts associated with the MP-1 facility would be reduced by the Project. 
Additionally, the Project would be consistent with all applicable General Plan Polices pertaining to 
Aesthetics/Visual Resources, provided that a variance is granted to allow transmission lines to be placed 
at ground level as opposed to underground. 

 Aboveground utility lines. Objective C, Policy 3, Actions 3.1-3.8 Conservation/Open 
Space Element (Visual Resources) provides for underground installation of utility lines in 
conformity with County Requirements.  Chapter 11 of the Land Use Regulations 
provides for underground installation unless approved through Use Permit or Director 
Review in certain specified circumstances.  Actions 3.1-3-8 also allow for aboveground 
installation pursuant to a variance.  The Project is consistent with this policy if the 
requested variance is granted. Additionally, the transmission lines would be eligible for 
an exception to the underground requirement pursuant to Chapter 11, as described in 
Exhibit B, section B.2. 

5555



5 
 

 
 Mechanical appurtenances/building height. (Land Use Element – Development 

Standards): The Project proposes to install two-inch diameter vent pipes and one-inch 
diameter lightning masts on top of the air cooling towers which would extend up to 
approximately 40 feet above ground level, exceeding the permitted height of 35 fee. 
However, Mono County regulations allow for exceptions to be granted by the Planning 
Director in the cases of mechanical appurtenances or, for building heights in excess of 35 
feet, through the Use Permit process.  The purge tank vent pipes and lightning qualify as 
“mechanical appurtenances” and would thus meets the criteria for exception to be granted 
by the Planning Director, or by the more stringent Use Permit process. (See sectoins II.A 
and B below.) 

The Project would be consistent with relevant General Plan Policies in the Conservation/Open Space 
Element pertaining to Air Quality as discussed on page 30 of the RDEIR2.  

The Project would be consistent with relevant General Plan Policies in the Conservation/Open Space 
Element pertaining to Biological Resources as discussed on pages 30-32 of the RDEIR2 and section 4.4 
of the RDEIR, as revised.  For example, current biologic and hydrologic monitoring will continue and 
will also be applied to the M-1 plant; baseline studies have been prepared to document existing conditions 
on the Project site and mitigation measures and design features are imposed to minimize potential impacts 
based on those studies and recommendations. 
 
The Project would also be consistent with relevant General Plan Policies (shown in Table 25 of the 
RDEIR) in the Conservation/Open Space Element pertaining to hydrology and water quality as described 
on pp. 30 – 36 of the RDEIR2.   The Project includes design features and is subject to mitigation 
measures which avoid or minimize potential impacts to hydrologic resources to a level that is less than 
significant through, among other things,  installation of a subsurface retention basin at the M-1 plant site, 
implementation of erosion control/stormwater construction best management practices (BMPs) and post-
construction BMPs, as discussed in the EIR. (See e.g., section 4.8.3).  The Project involves no additional 
use or extraction of water from the geothermal resource and therefore has no impact to water quality.  
 

 Setbacks from surface watercourse.  As discussed previously, Section 15.070(B)(1)(d) of the 
County’s Land Use Regulations imposes a 500-foot setback from surface watercourses for 
geothermal development within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone.  Chapter 33 of the General Plan 
authorizes the granting of variances from any Land Development Regulation or LUD if certain 
conditions exist.  The project requires a variance from this setback because, while it would be 
further from the same watercourse than the existing plant, the replacement plant would still be 
partially within that setback. The Energy Resources section of the Conservation and Open Space 
Element (Goal 1, Objective D, Policy 1, Action 1.13) lists the 500-foot setback as an “action” to 
protect hydrologic resources.  That reference is not intended to prohibit the granting of an 
otherwise authorized variance and does not “re-impose” the setback requirement already 
imposed.  If a variance is granted in accordance with Chapter 33, then the Project is consistent 
with the General Plan, both as currently written and with the clarifications to the General Plan 
included proposed by GPA 12-003(b).   

The Project would be consistent with relevant General Plan Policies in the Safety Element pertaining to 
fire hazards as discussed on page 32 of the RDEIR2 and in section 4.7 of the RDEIR.  For example, the 
Project would not create a significant risk from wildland or structural fire; the Project will obtain a will-
serve letter from the Long Valley Fire Protection District and will implement Project HazMat Design 
Feature 4, which would extend the existing fire suppression and response program in place at the Casa 

5656



6 
 

Diablo Geothermal Complex to cover the proposed Project. Appendix A to the RDEIR presents a list of 
measures that the Project would adopt in order to reduce the risk of wildland and/or structural fire. These 
measures include compliance with applicable requirements in the Fire Safe Ordinance and Uniform Fire 
Code; and the Notice of Preparation for the Draft EIR was sent to the Department of Forestry and the 
Long Valley Fire Protection District was consulted in the preparation of the RDEIR. 

The Project would be consistent with relevant General Plan Policies in the Hazardous Waste Management 
Element pertaining to hazardous materials. The Project includes several design features, presented as 
HazMat Design Features 1 through 5 in the RDEIR.  

For analysis of Project consistency with relevant General Plan Policies in the Noise Element pertaining to 
noise, see Section 4.9 of the RDEIR. As discussed therein, the Project, including Noise Design Features 1 
through 3, would be consistent with all applicable General Plan Polices pertaining to noise. 

II. MECHANICAL APPURTENANCES/BUILDING HEIGHT EXCEPTION 

A. The project will not result in substantial detrimental effects on the enjoyment and use of 
surrounding properties.  

 
Several mechanical appurtenances (two purge tanks, of about 36 inches in length and 24 inches in 
diameter, a two-inch diameter pipe, and a one-inch diameter lightning mast/rod) would extend up to 
approximately 40 feet in height.  These mechanical appurtenances are part of the CUP application and are 
evaluated on pp 4-2 – 4-35 of the RDEIR.  As described in the EIR, these appurtenances would be nearly 
completely obscured by vegetation and the super-structure of the main plant and would be colored to be 
blend with the existing background. The analysis shown in the EIR demonstrates the project would 
preserve scenic vistas and would not have any impact on surrounding properties.  
 

B. The modified height will not exceed the lifesaving equipment capabilities of the fire 
protection agency having jurisdiction. 

The mechanical appurtenances are lightning rods and pipes – and will not be occupied.  The Long 
Valley Fire Department was consulted in the preparation of the EIR and it was determined the 
height exception does not exceed the lifesaving capabilities of the protection agency. The Project 
is required to obtain a will-serve letter from the Long Valley Fire Protection District and will also 
implement Project HazMat Design Feature 4, which would extend the existing fire suppression 
and response program in place at the Casa Diablo Geothermal Complex to cover the proposed 
Project. 

 
 

 

5757



1 
 

Exhibit D 
Reclamation Plan 12-001 
Findings and Rationale 

 
 
A. The reclamation plan complies with the provisions of CEQA.  

 
The Reclamation Plan is a component of the Mammoth Pacific Replacement Project.  A Final Environmental 
Impact Report has been prepared for the Project.  (SCH # 2011022020) and certified by the Planning Commission 
prior to adoption of the EIR. 

 
B. The reclamation plan is consistent with the objectives and policies set forth in this General Plan and any 

applicable area or specific plans. 
 
The project is consistent with the objectives and policies of the General Plan. The Land Use Element, Mammoth 
Vicinity Policies Objective C, Policy 4 & Action 4.1 provides: 
 
Policy 4: Regulate geothermal and mining and reclamation activities in the Mammoth vicinity in a manner that 
retains the scenic, recreational, and environmental integrity of the Mammoth vicinity. 
 
The Mammoth Pacific Reclamation Plan requires removal of the MP-I plant, and removal of the MP-2 plant once 
these facilities are decommissioned.  The proposed M-1 plant would also be removed once the plant is 
decommissioned in 2045.  The offices, maintenance yard, warehouse, roads and wells would be removed once 
these facilities are no longer needed.  Some roads and wells may remain to support geothermal production on 
USFS property for the PLES plant.  The PLES plant is on Inyo National Forest lands and not subject to the 
reclamation plan.   
 
Removal and site reclamation of the above facilities retains the scenic and environmental integrity of the area.   
 
Action 4.1: All geothermal, mining and reclamation activities shall comply with the policies of the county's 
Conservation/Open Space Element and the county's Reclamation Ordinance. 

 
The Conservation and Open Space Element of the General Plan, Energy Resources, provides that Geothermal 
exploration and development projects shall be sited, carried out and maintained by the permit holder in a manner 
that best protects hydrologic resources and water quality and quantity.  Pursuant to that policy, permit 
conditions assure that required reclamation is completed within one year after a project is completed. The 
Reclamation plan contains provisions that assure the protection of springs, streams, and fumaroles from erosion, 
sediment transport, and similar adverse effects. Plan provisions also assure that project sites are restored as 
closely as reasonably possible to natural conditions, as determined by the MCEDD, in consultation with the 
Visual Review Committee.  

 
Below is a summary of plant removal cost and timeframes listed in the Reclamation Plan: 
 MP-1 MP-2 M-1  Wells 
Reclamation start 
date 

2014 or 2015 2045 2045 2045 

Cost $356,224 $739,513 $564,949 $2,210,719 
     
 
Project conditions require reclamation activities to be completed within one year of plant removal.   
 
The reclamation plan has erosion control and retention basins for each plant site to protect on-site springs, 
streams, and fumaroles  from erosion, and requires that the site be monitored to assure that project sites are 
restored as closely as reasonably possible to natural conditions.  

5858



2 
 

 
C. Appropriate conditions have been imposed to ensure and verify that the site during and after reclamation 

will not cause a public hazard, nor be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.  
The Mammoth Pacific Reclamation Plan requires removal of the power plants and plant infrastructure and 
restoration of the site to natural conditions as various components of the plant are removed.   The project is 
required to comply with the adopted reclamation plan, which sets forth measures to avoid safety hazards and 
provide for public health, safety and welfare on the site during and after reclamation. 

 
D. An approved end use has been identified and the reclamation of the site shall be finally completed as soon 

as is feasible, considering the particular circumstances of the site to be reclaimed, and the plan provides for 
concurrent reclamation, where appropriate and feasible.  
The 90 acre site has an end land use of open space and will be restored to natural site conditions. The 
reclamation timeframes listed in the Reclamation Plan are: 
 MP-1 MP-2 M-1  Wells 
Reclamation start 
date 

2014 or 2015 2045 2045 2045 

The Plan allows for concurrent reclamation and timing based on when the various plants are decommissioned and 
various infrastructure is removed.   

 
E. The reclamation plan conforms to minimum verifiable performance standards established Chapter 35 and, 

in the case of surface mining operations, meets or exceeds the minimum, verifiable statewide reclamation 
standards adopted by the State Mining and Geology Board, and in the case of geothermal well 
abandonment, conforms to the requirements and guidelines of the California Division of Oil and Gas on 
non-federal lands, and the Bureau of Land Management on federal lands.  
The Reclamation Plan conforms to the standards as described in Chapter 35, Reclamation Plan, section 35.050 
Reclamation Standards.  The following summarizes standards and how the project complies with these applicable 
standards.  Not every standard from section 35.05 is listed as some of these standards apply only to projects 
subject to Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 (SMARA).   
 
1. Wildlife Habitat.  
Wildlife and wildlife habitat shall be protected in accordance with the following standards: 
 Rare, threatened or endangered species or species of special concern, and their respective habitat shall be 

conserved.   
No federal- or state-listed threatened or endangered species are known to occupy or frequent the Project 
area.  (Page 2 of Reclamation Plan)   

 Wildlife habitat shall be established on disturbed lands in a condition similar to or better than that which 
existed before the lands were disturbed.   
Wildlife habitat will be established on the reclaimed lands in a condition similar to the undisturbed lands 
surrounding the sites.  (Page 3 of Reclamation Plan) 

 Wetland habitat shall be avoided. 
No wetland habitat on site will be disturbed.  (Page 3 of Reclamation Plan) 

 
2. Backfilling, Regrading, Slope Stability, and Recontouring.  
Backfilling, regrading, slope stabilization, and recontouring shall conform to the following standards: 

 
 Where backfilling is required for resource conservation purposes (e.g., agriculture, fish and wildlife 

habitat, and wild land conservation), fill material shall be backfilled to the standards required for the 
resource conservation use involved. 
Project-affected areas of surface disturbance will be re-contoured as necessary to blend with the 
surrounding topography.  (Page 4 of Reclamation Plan) 

 
 Final reclaimed fill slopes, including permanent piles or dumps of mine waste rock and overburden, shall 

not exceed 2:1 (horizontal:vertical), except where site-specific geologic and engineering analyses 

5959



3 
 

demonstrate that the proposed final slope will have a minimum slope stability factor of safety that is 
suitable for the approved  end use, and when the proposed final slope can be successfully revegetated. 
Final reclaimed fill slopes will not exceed 2:1 (horizontal:vertical), except where site-specific geologic 
and engineering analyses demonstrate that the proposed final slope will have a minimum slope stability 
factor of safety that is suitable for the approved end use and when the proposed final slope can be 
successfully re-vegetated. A site reclamation plan for MP-1 plan is provided on Plates 1a, 1b, and 1c, 
attached in Appendix A.  A site reclamation plan for the MP-2 plant site is provided on Plates 2a and 2b, 
attached in Appendix A.  A site reclamation plan for the M-1 plant site is provided on Plates 3a and 3b, 
attached in Appendix A.  (Page 4 of Reclamation Plan) 

 
 At closure, all fill slopes, including permanent piles or dumps of mine waste and overburden, shall 

conform to the surrounding topography and/or approved end use. 
The reclamation plan requires that project-affected areas of surface disturbance will be re-contoured as 
necessary to blend with the surrounding topography 

 
3. Revegetation. 
Revegetation shall be part of the approved plan, unless it is not consistent with the approved end use. 

 
 A vegetative cover suitable for the approved end use and capable of self-regeneration without continued 

dependence on irrigation, soil amendments or fertilizer shall be established on disturbed lands. The vegetative 
density, cover and species-richness of naturally occurring habitats shall be documented in baseline studies 
carried out prior to the initiation of resource development activities. 
At least 3 shrubs and 8 perennial native grasses and/or forbs per 4 square meters would be established on 
site. Perennial grasses would account for at least 10% of the relative cover. (Page 5 of Reclamation Plan) 

 
 Test plots conducted simultaneously with resource development activities shall be required to determine the 

most appropriate planting procedures to be followed to ensure successful implementation of the proposed 
revegetation plan. The County may waive the requirement to conduct test plots when the success of the 
proposed revegetation plan can be documented from experience with similar species and conditions or by 
relying on competent professional advice based on experience with the species to be planted. 
The reclamation of the MP-1 (Plate 1B) site will serve as the test plot for both the seed mix and success of 
vegetative cover stated above.   

 
 Where resource development activities result in compaction of the soil, ripping, disking, or other means shall 

be used in areas to be revegetated to eliminate compaction and to establish a suitable root zone in preparation 
for planting. 
Approved methods in use already include the design and construction of stable slopes, minor re-grading, 
ripping or sub-soiling to de-compact and loosen compacted soil, topsoiling, surface preparation through fine 
grading, reseeding and re-vegetation (or natural re-vegetation). (Page 4 of Reclamation Plan) 

 
 Prior to closure, all access roads, haul roads, and other traffic routes to be reclaimed shall be stripped of any 

remaining road base materials, prepared in accordance with section g below, covered with suitable growth 
media or topsoil, and revegetated. 
Plate B in Appendix A of the Reclamation Plan shows which roads and travel routes will be removed at final 
reclamation, which will include coverage with suitable growth media and revegetation.   

 
 Indigenous plant species shall be used for revegetation, except when introduced species are necessary to meet 

the end uses specified in the approved reclamation plan.  
The seed mix for revegetation is listed on page 4 of the Mammoth Pacific Reclamation Plan.  Preferably, 
seeds for this project would be collected within the immediate vicinity of the project area. If this is not 
possible due to poor seed availability, seed from the Eastern Slopes Subsection of the Sierra Nevada Section 
and Mono Section would be acceptable.   
 

 Planting shall be conducted during the most favorable period of the year for plant establishment. 

6060



4 
 

The Reclamation Plan includes requirements to reseed applicable areas in the fall in order to take advantage 
of beneficial winter moisture.   

 
 Weeds as defined by the Soil Conservation Service, or the county Agricultural Commissioner, or the 

California Native Plant Society, shall be managed: 1) when they threaten the success of the proposed 
revegetation; and 2) to prevent spreading to nearby areas; and 3) to eliminate fire hazard. 
The Reclamation Plan includes weed management measures, including a standard that all non-native weed 
species that are already present in the area would account for no more than 5% total of the relative cover at 
the end of the 2 year evaluation period. 
 

 Success of revegetation shall be judged based upon the effectiveness of the vegetation for the approved end 
use, and by comparing the quantified measures of vegetative cover, density, and species-richness of the 
reclaimed lands to similar parameters of naturally occurring vegetation in the area. Either baseline data or data 
from nearby reference areas may be used as the standard for comparison. Quantitative standards for success 
and the location(s) of the reference area(s) shall be set forth in the approved reclamation plan. Comparisons 
shall be made until performance standards are met provided that, during the last two years, there has been no 
human intervention, including for example, irrigation, fertilization, or weeding. Standards for success shall be 
based on expected local recovery rates. Valid sampling techniques for measuring success shall be specified in 
the approved reclamation plan. Sample sizes must be sufficient to produce at least an 80% confidence level. 
At least 3 shrubs and 8 perennial native grasses and/or forbs per 4 square meters would be established on 
site. Perennial grasses would account for at least 10% of the relative cover.  Failure to meet the success 
standards would require additional planting and/or weed control, as appropriate, until standards are met. 
(Page 5 of Reclamation Plan) 
 

4. Drainage, Diversion Structures, Waterways, and Erosion Control. 
 Reclamation activities shall be conducted to protect on-site and downstream beneficial uses of water. 

Surface runoff and drainage will be controlled by silt fencing or a straw wattle until the interim gravel 
surface for MP-1 has been placed on the pad and/or the new vegetation has been developed to a point of 
controlling erosion for all sites during final reclamation. There are no perennial streams or other surface 
waters located within the Project area that will be impacted by operations or reclamation. A “blue line” 
stream is identified adjacent to the sites along the northerly boundary on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 
topographic map (“Old Mammoth” quadrangle, 1:24000 series). The blueline stream is an 
ephemeral/intermittent identified as a stream “riparian conservation area” (RCA) by the USFS under the 
SNFPA ROD (USDA, Forest Service 2004). Project activities and reclamation avoid impacts to this 
intermittent stream. 

   
 The quality of water, recharge potential, and storage capacity of groundwater aquifers shall not be diminished, 

except as allowed in the approved reclamation plan. 
Retention basins have been designed for each site, based on the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control 
Board's Water Quality Plan for the Mammoth Creek Basin to contain the runoff volume generated from a 20 
year intensity storm with a one hour duration, which is assumed to be 1 inch (0.83 feet) * Area (square feet) * 
C (infiltration coefficient).  Retention basin sizing calculations are included in Appendix B. 

 
 Erosion and sedimentation shall be controlled during all phases of construction, operation, reclamation, and 

closure of an operation to minimize siltation of lakes and watercourses, as required by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, the State Water Resources Control Board, and the Mono County Grading Ordinance. 
See above reference to Appendix B and the project is required to comply with the Mono County Grading 
Ordinance and an approved grading plan.   
 

 Surface runoff and drainage shall be controlled by berms, silt fences, sediment ponds, revegetation, hay bales, 
or other erosion control measures, to ensure that surrounding land and water resources are protected from 
erosion, gullying, sedimentation, and contamination. Erosion control methods shall be designed to handle 
runoff from not less than the 20-year/1-hour intensity storm event. 

6161



5 
 

See above reference to Appendix B and the project is required to comply with the Mono County Grading 
Ordinance and an approved grading plan.   

 
5. Prime Agricultural Land Reclamation and Other Agricultural Land 

The project site does not contain prime or other agricultural lands.   
 

6. Building, Structure and Equipment Removal. 
 All equipment, supplies, and other materials shall be stored in designated areas (as shown in the approved 

reclamation plan). All waste shall be disposed of in accordance with state and local health and safety 
ordinances. 
Once the MP-1 plant is decommissioned and removed, the MP-1 site will be used for interim storage for 
ongoing operations at the site .  See Plate 1B.  Plates 1a, 2a, and 3a in the reclamation plan show the existing 
sites and identify the various facilities to be removed.   

 
 All buildings, structures, and equipment shall be dismantled and removed prior to final site closure except 

those buildings, structures, and equipment approved in the reclamation plan as necessary for the end use. 
Plates 1a, 2a, and 3a in the reclamation plan show the existing sites and identify the various facilities to be 
removed.   

 
7. Stream Protection, Including Surface and Groundwater. 
 Surface and groundwater shall be protected from siltation and pollutants that may diminish water quality as 

required by the Federal Clean Water Act, sections 301 et seq. (33 U.S.C. section 1311), 404 et seq. (33 U.S.C. 
section 1344), the Porter-Cologne Act, section 13000 et seq., the county Grading Ordinance, the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board or the State Water Resources Control Board. 
Stable topographic surface and drainage conditions will be established to control erosion, prevent 
sedimentation, blend with the surrounding landscape, and to protect on-site and downstream sites. Plates 
1B,2B, and 3B show interim reclamation site storm water pollution prevention plans.  The project is also 
subject to requirements of a Mono County grading permit.   

 
8. Topsoil Salvage, Maintenance and Redistribution. 
When the approved reclamation plan calls for revegetation or cultivation of disturbed lands, the following 
performance standards shall apply to topsoil salvage, maintenance, and redistribution activities: 

 
 All salvageable topsoil suitable for revegetation shall be removed as a separate layer from areas to be 

disturbed. Topsoil and vegetation removal shall not precede development activities by more than one year, 
unless a longer time period is approved by the County. 
Topsoil was not stockpiled when MP-1 and MP-2 sites were graded.  Therefore, the resulting surficial soils 
after grading will be analyzed to determine the presence or absence of elements essential for plant growth 
and to determine those soluble elements that may be toxic to plants, if the soil has been chemically altered or 
if the growth media consists of other than the native topsoil.  Topsoil and suitable amended surficial soils will 
be planted with a vegetative cover or will be protected by other equally effective measures to prevent water 
and wind erosion and to discourage weeds. Topsoil will stockpiled for the M-1 site reclamation will be spread 
over the site in a minimum thickness of 3 inches.  One of the exhibits for the M-1 site will be amended to show 
the topsoil storage area.  (Page 7 of the Reclamation Plan) 

 
 Topsoil resources shall be mapped prior to stripping and the location of topsoil stockpiles shall be shown on a 

map in the reclamation plan. If the amount of topsoil needed to cover all surfaces to be revegetated is not 
available on-site, other suitable material capable of sustaining vegetation (such as subsoil) shall be removed 
as a separate layer for use as a suitable growth media. Topsoil and suitable growth media shall be maintained 
in separate stockpiles. Test plots may be required to determine the suitability of growth media for revegetation 
purposes. 
See discussion directly above.   
 

6262



6 
 

 Soil salvage operations and phases of reclamation shall be carried out in accordance with the schedule that: 1) 
is set forth in the approved Reclamation Plan; 2) minimizes the area disturbed; and 3) is designed to achieve 
maximum revegetation success allowable under the plan. 
Soil salvage is limited for the MP-1 and MP-2 sites as stated above.  The topsoil stockpile area for the M-1 
site will be shown on a map to be included in the reclamation plan.  The reclamation timeframes listed in the 
Reclamation Plan for the various plants are: 

 MP-1 MP-2 M-1  Wells 
Reclamation start 
date 

2014 or 2015 2045 2045 2045 

 
 Topsoil and suitable growth media shall be used to phase reclamation as soon as can be accommodated by the 

operations schedule presented in the approved reclamation plan. Topsoil and suitable growth media that 
cannot be utilized immediately for reclamation shall be stockpiled in an area where it will not be disturbed 
until needed for reclamation. 
Topsoil will stockpiled for the M-1 site reclamation.  One of the exhibits for the M-1 site will be amended to 
show the topsoil storage area.   
 

 Topsoil and suitable growth media shall be redistributed in a manner that results in a stable, uniform thickness 
consistent with the approved end use, site configuration, and drainage patterns. 
Topsoil will stockpiled for the M-1 site reclamation will be spread over the site in a minimum thickness of 3 
inches.  One of the exhibits for the M-1 site will be amended to show the topsoil storage area.   

 
9. Tailing and Waste Management 
There are not Tailings and/or Waste Management standards that are required for this project.   

 
10. Closure of Surface Openings 
 All geothermal wells shall be completed or abandoned in accordance with the California Division of Oil and 

Gas 
The Reclamation Plan requires that all geothermal wells scheduled for reclamation be abandoned in 
accordance with the requirements of the California Division of Oil and Gas. 

 
F. The estimated cost of the reclamation reasonably approximates the probable cost of performing the 

reclamation work as proposed in the plan and adequate surety (consistent with applicable provisions of 
SMARA for surface mining operations) will be posted to ensure completion of the required reclamation. 
The Reclamation Plan contains cost estimates for all three plants located on the project site.  A summary of 
timing and reclamation costs are: 
 MP-1 MP-2 M-1  Wells 
Reclamation start 
date 

2014 or 2015 2045 2045 2045 

Cost $356,224 $739,513 $564,949 $2,210,719 
See Appendix C Cost Estimates for additional details.  The Reclamation Plan requires that adequate surety be 
provided. 

 
G. The person or entity responsible for reclamation plan compliance has a public liability insurance policy in 

force for the duration of the reclamation which provides for personal injury and property protection in an 
amount adequate to compensate all persons injured or for property damaged as a result of the proposed 
reclamation activities.  
The reclamation plan requires that Ormat provide to Mono County Risk Management or Mono County Economic 
Development Department the required public liability insurance policy for review and approval.   

 

6363



1 
 

Exhibit E 
Clarifying General Plan Amendment 12-003(b) 

Findings and Rationale 
 

A. The proposed change to the text of the Land Development Regulations of the General Plan 
is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable area plan. 

 
The proposed change to section 15.070 of the Land Development Regulations is merely clarifying of 
existing regulations and General Plan provisions.  Chapter 33 currently provides that a variance may be 
granted from a Land Development Regulation if specified findings are made.  The proposed changes 
would cross-reference that ability within section 15.070 (itself a Land Development Regulation), which 
imposes a 500-foot setback from a surface watercourse for geothermal development within the Hot Creek 
Buffer Zone.  
 
 Setback requirements are traditional development standards (i.e., zoning standards) incorporated into the 
General Plan pursuant to a 1998 opinion of the California Attorney General issued at the request of Mono 
County.  (81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 57.)  As with traditional zoning, the General Plan contemplates the need 
to vary from such development standards and has incorporated a process, consistent with state law, to 
make adjustments for project-specific circumstances through the variance process.  GPA 12-003(b) 
clarifies the County’s current and past practice in implementing its General Plan. 
 
The Energy Resources section of the Conservation and Open Space Element (Goal 1, Objective D, Policy 
1, Action 1.13)  lists the 500-foot setback imposed by section 15.070 as an “action” to further the General 
Plan policy of protecting hydrologic resources.  That reference is not intended to prohibit the granting of 
an otherwise authorized variance from section 15.070 setbacks, nor does it “re-impose” the setback 
requirement.  The proposed clarifying language to be added to section 15.070 is not in conflict with the 
Conservation and Open Space Element either as written, or as proposed to be clarified 
contemporaneously with the clarification to section 15.070. 
 

 

6464



EXHIBIT F 
 

Draft Proposed General Plan Amendment 
 

The proposed General Plan clarifying revision would read as follows (new language shown in underline): 
 
Land Use Element 
Land Development Regulations 
15.070 Development Standards. 
 
The following minimum development standards shall apply to all projects in the Resource Extraction 
Designation unless a variance is granted in accordance with Chapter 33 or amended through the “Specific 
Plan” process. Other standards or conditions identified during the use permit process may also apply. 
 

A. Lot Size and District Area. 
 

The minimum lot size and district area shall be 40 acres or a quarter, quarter section, with the 
exception of patent and/or historical mining claims and "vested operations" which shall be considered 
on a case by case basis. Minimum lot size and district area may be reduced in 
conformance to the "Development Plan" or "Specific Plan" process. 
 
B. Setbacks. 
 
 1. No processing equipment or facilities shall be located and no resource development 
 shall occur within the following minimum horizontal setbacks: 

a. One hundred (100) feet from any interior public street or highway unless the 

Public Works Director determines that a lesser distance would be acceptable. 

b. One hundred (100) feet from any exterior property line. 

c. Five hundred (500) feet from any adjacent private dwelling, institution, school, 
or other building or location used for public assemblage. 

d. No geothermal development located within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone shall 
occur within 500 feet on either side of a surface watercourse (as indicated by a 
solid or broken blue line on U.S. Geological Survey 7.5- or 15-minute series 
topographic maps). 
 

Conservation and Open Space Element 
Energy Resources, Objective D, Policy 1 
 

Action 1.13: No geothermal development located within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone shall occur 
Adoption of land development regulations for geothermal development within 500 feet on either side 
of a surface watercourse (as indicated by a solid or broken blue line on U.S. Geological Survey 7.5- or 
15-minute series topographic maps) within the Hot Creek Buffer Zone (See Mono County Land 
Development Regulations, Chapter 15, section 15.070(B)(1)(d) .) 

 

6565



   
 

   

 
Mammoth Pacific  

Magma Lands including 
MP-1, MP-2, M-1 Power Plants  

 
 

Reclamation Plan 
 
 

Project 3030.2 

 
November 2011 

Revised September 2012 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
Mono County Energy Management Department 

P.O. Box 2415  
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 

 
 

Submitted By: 
 

Engineer: 
triad/holmes associates   

    
  Post Office Box 1570  
  Mammoth Lakes, Ca 93546  
  Phone: (760) 934-7588   
   Fax: (760) 934-5619   
  tplatz@thainc.com   
  Tom Platz, RCE, Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 9-28-2012 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              Thomas A. Platz, P.E. C41039                                                            Date

6666



 
   July 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP i Reclamation Plan 

Mammoth Pacific MP-1, MP-2, M-1  
Reclamation Plan 

 
 

INDEX 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................ 1 

2 Reclamation Plan .................................................................................... 2 

a. Wildlife Habitat ................................................................................. 2 
b. Backfilling, Re-grading, Slope Stability and Re-contouring ............. 3 

c. Re-vegetation .................................................................................... 4 
d. Drainage, Diversion Structures, Waterways and Erosion Control .... 5 

e. Prime Agricultural Reclamation ........................................................ 6 

f. Other Agricultural Land ..................................................................... 6 
g. Building, Structure and Equipment Removal .................................... 6 

h. Stream Protection Including Surface and Groundwater ................... 6 
i. Topsoil Salvage, Maintenance and Redistribution ............................ 6 

j. Tailing and Waste Management ........................................................ 7 

k. Closure of Surface Openings ............................................................. 7 
3 Inspections ............................................................................................. 7 

 

APPENDIX 

Figures .................................................................................................... A 

 Overall Site Map ...................................................... Plate A 
 Well Site Map ..........................................................Plate B 

 MP1 Existing Plant Site Structures ....................... Plate 1a 
 MP1 Interim Reclamation Plan ............................. Plate 1b 

 MP1 Reclamation Plan .......................................... Plate 1c 

 
 MP2 Existing Plant Site Structures ....................... Plate 2a 

 MP2 Reclamation Plan .......................................... Plate 2b 
 

 M1 Existing Plant Site Structures ......................... Plate 3a 

 M1 Reclamation Plan............................................. Plate 3b 
 

Retention Calculations ............................................................................ B 
Cost Estimate  ......................................................................................... C 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6767



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 1 Reclamation Plan 

 

1. Introduction 
Mammoth Pacific, LP (MPLP) is currently operating the MP-1 and MP-2 power 
plants, which are located in the southeast portion of the “Magma” private property 
in the northwest quarter of Section 32, Township 3 South, Range 28 East of the 
Mount Diablo Meridian.  
 
The MP-1 plant was the first geothermal power plant to be built at the Mammoth 
Pacific Complex, commencing operation in 1984 under a Conditional Use Permit 
issued by Mono County.  MP-2 geothermal plant was established in 1990 under a 
separate Mono County Conditional Use Permit.  Ormat Nevada, Inc., the owner of 
MPLP, proposes to replace the existing MP-1 plant with a new, modern, efficient, 
and more advanced M1 generation plant.  MPLP will build the new plant slightly to 
the east of the MP-1 site and just west of the MP-2 site as shown in the attached 
Plate A.  The MP-1 plant will operate for up to 2 years from the date the M–1 plant 
begins startup operations.  MPLP will close and decommission the MP-1 plant after 
the M-1 plant becomes commercial.  Depending on the approval and construction 
start date of M-1, the anticipated date for the reclamation of the MP-1 plant will be 
in Year 2014 or 2015.  The MP-2 plant full reclamation will commence in 2045.  At 
that time the MP-1 plant site will be reclaimed through the removal of the existing 
power plant facilities within the site.  As an interim, MP-1 site will be reused as an 
equipment yard to support the Mammoth Pacific operations as it is adjacent to the 
Mammoth Pacific offices and existing maintenance yard.  The existing offices, 
maintenance yard, and warehouse next to the MP-1 site will remain until all 
geothermal operations including the PLES plant on USFS lands end power 
production. 
 
Once any power plant (MP-1, MP-2, or M-1) has been removed, reclamation of the 
site will be completed within one year.   
 
Once the new M1 plant is decommissioned in 2045, the MP-1 and M-1 sites will be 
reclaimed as described below in Section 2 – Reclamation Plan.   
 
Included in the reclamation will be the geothermal well sites which support the M-1, 
MP-1, and MP-2 plants.  These wells will remain in operation until 2045.  Well sites 
are shown on Plate B. 
 
The end land use for the MP-1 site will be to restore the 39 acre parcel to natural 
site conditions consistent with the Resource Management land use designation.   
 
The end land use for the M-1 and MP-2 sites will be to restore the 50 acre parcel to 
natural site conditions consistent with the Resource Extraction land use designation.   
 
 
 

6868



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 2 Reclamation Plan 

 
 
Summary of Reclamation Plan timeframe, cost, and end land use for all geothermal 
sites is shown below: 
 

 MP-1 Plant MP-2 Plant M-1 Plant Wells 

Reclamation Start Date Year 2014 or 
2015 

Year 2045 Year 2045 Year 2045 

Estimated Cost $356,224 $739,513 $564,949 $2,210,719 

 
The reclamation date provided for the M-1 plant and the wells are estimated dates 
only.  Ormat plans to operate the plant and wells as long as there is the geothermal 
resource is available.  This reclamation plan will need to be revised and approved 
by the County if the geothermal plant will continue operations past 2045 or if the 
reclamation changes due to a change in end land use.   
 

2. Reclamation Plan 
This Reclamation Plan (Plan) is subject to Planning Commission approval and 
prepared in compliance with Mono County General Plan requirements (Chapter 35) 
and is designed to meet the reclamation requirements of the MP-1, MP-2, and M-1 
plants. The reclamation techniques and methods in this Reclamation Plan are based 
on successful re-vegetation/reclamation programs initiated at the existing Casa 
Diablo Power Plants.   

 
The reclamation plan addresses all surface disturbance created by the Project and 
abandonment of geothermal well sites. The geothermal wells will be sealed in 
accordance with the State and Mono County Environmental Health Department 
standards and requirements.  Disturbed areas surrounding the wells will be 
reclaimed in the same manner as the plant sites.  
  
In general, the reclamation plan includes measures for protecting wildlife and the 
public; minimizing erosion; demolishing structures; re-grading cut-and-fill slopes; 
re-vegetation; and providing the resumption of pre-project land uses. The 
reclamation goals are to reclaim the site to a stable, functioning landscape 
unit/ecosystem to allow for similar land uses, including wildlife habitat and 
dispersed and concentrated recreation, as currently exist, consistent with the Inyo 
National Forest Land and Resource Management Plan and the Mono County General 
Plan. 
 

Wildlife Habitat  
A. No federal- or state-listed threatened or endangered species are known to 

occupy or frequent the Project area, however, there are five species of 
special concern to the Forest Service and CDFG associated with this habitat: 
mule deer, pine marten, northern goshawk, California spotted owl, and sage 
grouse. With removal of surface facilities and re-vegetation there would be 

6969



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 3 Reclamation Plan 

no residual impacts to these species. 
 

B. Wildlife habitat will be established on the reclaimed lands in a condition 
similar to the undisturbed lands surrounding the sites. 

 
C. There are no wetlands or other surface waters located within the Project 

area, therefore, no wetland habitats will be impacted. 
 

D. There are no perennial streams or other surface waters located within the 
Project area. A “blue line” stream is identified adjacent to the sites along the 
northerly boundary on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) topographic map 
(“Old Mammoth” quadrangle, 1:24000 series). The blueline stream is an 
ephemeral/intermittent identified as a stream “riparian conservation area” 
(RCA) by the USFS under the SNFPA ROD (USDA, Forest Service 2004).  The 
stream flows southeast through the Casa Diablo geothermal development 
area emergency spill containment basin then draining into Mammoth Creek 
approximately 0.8 miles from the site. 

 
E. A more detailed on wildlife and wildlife habitat is found in Section 3.5 

Biological Resources of Draft EIR. 
 

Backfilling, Re-grading, Slope Stability and Re-contouring 
Upon completion of operations, all Project-affected areas of surface disturbance will 
be re-contoured as necessary to blend with the surrounding topography as soon as 
practicable. Final reclaimed fill slopes will not exceed 2:1 (horizontal:vertical), 
except where site-specific geologic and engineering analyses demonstrate that the 
proposed final slope will have a minimum slope stability factor of safety that is 
suitable for the approved end use and when the proposed final slope can be 
successfully re-vegetated.  
 
A final site reclamation plan for MP-1 plan is provided on Plates 1a, 1b, and 1c, 
attached in Appendix A.  Once facilities have been removed from the plant site 
minor grading to shape the existing pad to slope to the northeast and backfill of the 
existing retention pond will be completed.  As an interim, the pad will be covered 
with gravel to provide a surface for vehicles that will significantly reduce erosion 
and runoff through percolation of rainfall and snowmelt.   Existing slope on the 
west and south sides of the plant site will be graded at 2:1 (horizontal: vertical) 
down to the reshaped pad.  A stormwater retention basin will be graded to 
intercept the 20 year, 1 inch rainfall event as part of the interim reclamation plan.  
The basin will be graded with 3:1 side slopes to allow animals to escape from the 
basin.  The fire suppression system will not be removed since it serves the existing 
office buildings.   
 
As part of the final reclamation plan, gravel from the MP-1 site will be removed and 
the site will be re-vegetated.  A retention basin will be located in the northeast 

7070



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 4 Reclamation Plan 

corner to collect the runoff from the site graded with side slopes of 3:1 to allow 
animals to escape from the bottom of the basin.  Final reclaimed slopes, will not 
exceed 2:1 (horizontal: vertical) and will conform to the surrounding topography.   
 
A site reclamation plan for the MP-2 plant site is provided on Plates 2a and 2b, 
attached in Appendix A.  The plant structures, piping and equipment will be 
removed initially including concrete foundations supporting those facilities.   The 
concrete liner from the existing pond will be removed and the pond will be 
backfilled. A retention basin will be installed as shown on Plate 2b, to collect the 
runoff from the site.  Minor grading will be required once all the facilities and paving 
have been removed from the plant.  The site will be graded at approximately 1% 
toward the retention basin.  The concrete lined sloped separating MP-2 site and 
PLES site will remain until PLES site is reclaimed.  A small portion of the slope 
located at the northern boundary of MP-2 site will be re-graded at 2:1 (horizontal: 
vertical). 
 
A site reclamation plan for the M-1 plant site is provided on Plates 3a and 3b, 
attached in Appendix A.  Once facilities have been removed from the plant site, 
slopes around the site will be graded at 2:1 (horizontal: vertical).  The pad will be 
graded to slope to the south toward the existing retention pond.  Existing retention 
system west of the pond will be removed and another retention pond will be graded 
with 3:1 side slopes.  The two retaining walls on the site will also be removed and a 
slope will be constructed at a maximum of 2:1 where the walls were located.  
 

Re-vegetation 
The natural re-vegetation and planted vegetation that has already occurred on 
previously disturbed areas for the existing Casa Diablo Power Plants serve as a 
basis for determining the plant species and topographic features necessary for 
successful reclamation. These methods in use already include the design and 
construction of stable slopes, minor re-grading, ripping or sub-soiling to de-compact 
and loosen compacted soil, topsoiling, surface preparation through fine grading, 
reseeding and re-vegetation (or natural re-vegetation).  
 
The M‐1 site will be removing approximately 39 trees.  Due to the lack of irrigation 
water available to establish trees replacement of trees is not proposed within the 
reclamation plan.  
Seeding of disturbed areas would be completed using the following seed mixture 
and application rate: 
 
  

Species                                              Pure Live Seed (Pounds per Ac.) 

 Big sagebrush (Artemisia tridentata)            0.5 
     Antelope bitterbrush (Purshia tridentata) 4 

 Desert peach (Prunus andersonii) 2 
Rabbitbrush (Ericameria nauseosa) 0.5 

7171



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 5 Reclamation Plan 

Western needlegrass (Achnatherum occidentalis) 2 
Squirreltail (Elymus elytnoides) 4 
Basin wildrye (Leymus cinereus)  3 
  

Preferably, seeds for this project would be collected within the immediate vicinity of 
the project area. If this is not possible due to poor seed availability, seed from the 
Eastern Slopes Subsection of the Sierra Nevada Section and Mono Section (Miles 
and Goudey 1997 — map available) would be acceptable.  If availability still 
presents a problem, the seed mix may be modified in consultation with the Forest 
Service.  Re-vegetation will occur in the fall to take advantage of fall and winter 
moisture.  
 
The existing detention pond at MP-1 plant will be designated as a re-vegetation site 
to test the seed mix, shown on Plate 1B.  Annual monitoring of this site will be 
conducted annually.  
 
Success standards for re-vegetation are as follows:  

 At least 3 shrubs and 8 perennial native grasses and/or forbs per 4 square 
meters would be established on site.  

 Perennial grasses would account for at least 10% of the relative cover.  
 All non-native weed species that are already present in the area would 

account for no more than 5% total of the relative cover at the end of the 2 
year evaluation period. New non-native species introduced as a result of the 
project would be eradicated, i.e. 0% cover. Where this standard is not met, 
appropriate weed control measures will be implemented. 

 At least 70% of trees planted.  If this success rate is not achieved then 
supplemental irrigation may be required to establish trees. 

 
Seeded slopes will be stabilized with erosion control blanket, such as “North 
American Green jt150.” 
 
The re-vegetated areas would be monitored for compliance with the success 
standards defined above. Barriers will be installed as necessary to prevent 
unauthorized vehicular traffic from interfering with the reclamation of temporary 
access routes or other project areas. Re-vegetated areas may be fenced to protect 
young plants from grazing animals. 
 
The area shown on the M-1 reclamation plan as hot soils will not be held to the 
success standards noted above as existing areas around the project site with hot 
soils are either void of vegetation or poorly vegetated so it is anticipated the hot 
soils will not revegetate.  
  
Failure to meet the success standards would require additional planting and/or 
weed control, as appropriate, until standards are met. 
 

7272



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 6 Reclamation Plan 

Drainage, Diversion Structures, Waterways and Erosion Control 
Stable topographic surface and drainage conditions will be established to control 
erosion, prevent sedimentation, blend with the surrounding landscape, and to 
protect on-site and downstream sites. 
 
Surface runoff and drainage will be controlled by silt fencing or a straw wattle until 
the interim gravel surface for MP-1 has been placed on the pad and/or the new 
vegetation has been developed to a point of controlling erosion for all sites during 
final reclamation. 
 
Retention basins have been designed for each site, based on the Lahontan Regional 
Water Quality Control Board's Water Quality Plan for the Mammoth Creek Basin to 
contain the runoff volume generated from a 20 year intensity storm with a one hour 
duration, which is assumed to be 1 inch (0.83 feet) * Area (square feet) * C 
(infiltration coefficient).  Retention basin sizing calculations are included in Appendix 
B. 
 

Prime Agricultural Reclamation 
The geothermal plant sites are not located within the prime agricultural lands and, 
therefore, this standard does not apply to the reclamation plan. 
 

Other Agricultural Land 
The geothermal plant sites are not located within agricultural lands of any kind and, 
therefore, this standard does not apply to the reclamation plan. 
 

Building, Structure and Equipment Removal 
At project decommissioning, all buildings and ancillary facilities will be reclaimed by 
having all structures removed and taken off-site. The on-site electric systems, 
geothermal and fire suppression water pipelines will be removed. The foundations 
for the plants, asphalt pavement except for those roads which support offsite 
facilities, and retaining walls will be removed. All above ground pipeline structures 
will be removed including the pipe and supports. Plates 1a, 2a, and 3a show the 
existing sites and identify the facilities to be removed.  The liner at the bottom of 
the existing retention pond at MP-1 plant, the concrete pond at MP-2, and 
underground retention basin at M1 site will be removed and soil will be tested for 
possible hydrocarbon contamination.  All contaminated soils will be removed and 
disposed of in accordance with state and local health and safety ordinances.  All 
other waste to be disposed of will also be done in accordance with state and local 
health safety ordinances. 
 

Stream Protection, including Surface and Groundwater 
There are no perennial streams or other surface waters located within the Project 
area. 
 

 

7373



 
  November 2011 

Mammoth Pacific LP 7 Reclamation Plan 

Topsoil Salvage, Maintenance and Redistribution 
A topsoil stockpiled area for the M-1 plant will be shown on a map prior to the start 
of construction.  Once the M-1 plant is decommissioned and removed, topsoil will 
be spread over the site in a minimum thickness of 3 inches.   
 
Topsoil was not stockpiled when MP-1 and MP-2 sites were graded.  Therefore, the 
resulting surficial soils after grading will be analyzed to determine the presence or 
absence of elements essential for plant growth and to determine those soluble 
elements that may be toxic to plants, if the soil has been chemically altered or if the 
growth media consists of other than the native topsoil.  If soil analysis suggests 
that fertility levels or soil constituents are inadequate to successfully implement the 
re-vegetation program, fertilizer or other soil amendments may be incorporated into 
the soil. When native plant materials are used, preference will be given to slow-
release fertilizers, including mineral and organic materials that mimic natural 
sources, and will be added in amounts similar to those found in reference soils 
under natural vegetation of the type being reclaimed.  
  
Topsoil and suitable amended surficial soils will be planted with a vegetative cover 
or will be protected by other equally effective measures to prevent water and wind 
erosion and to discourage weeds. 
 

Tailing and Waste Management 
Geothermal drilling waste and cuttings shall be disposed of in a manner approved 
by the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board and/or Mono County 
Environmental Health. 
 

Closure of Surface Openings 
Wells will be plugged in accordance with the State laws and regulations.  Plugged 
wells will be protected from public entry in order to eliminate any threat to public 
safety and to preserve access for wildlife habitat. 
 

3. Inspections 
A request for annual inspection will be submitted to the Mono County Compliance 
Officer once each calendar year until construction activities are completed, 
resuming again once abandonment activities commence. Requests for annual 
inspections will be accompanied by a written report prepared by a qualified 
professional who identifies to what extent the reclamation at the site conforms or 
deviates from the approved reclamation plan. 
 
The Compliance Officer will inspect or cause to be inspected the site within 30 
working days of receipt of the written report, filing fee, and application for 
inspection. Unless otherwise agreed, failure to inspect within 30 working days shall 
be deemed acceptance of the report and a finding that the resource development 
operation is in compliance with the reclamation plan. 

7474



   

triad/holmes associates   July 2011 

 

 

 

Reclamation Plan 

Mammoth Pacific  
MP-1, MP-2, M-1 Power Plants  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A 

Plates 

7575



7676



7777



7878



7979



K:\01 Mammoth\3030.2\acad\3030.2 REV reclamation.dwg, 10/1/2012 9:59:03 AM, 1:1

8080



8181



8282



8383



8484



   

triad/holmes associates   July 2011 

 

 

 

 

Reclamation Plan 

Mammoth Pacific  
MP-1, MP-2, M-1 Power Plants  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

Retention Calculations  
 

 

 

 

8585



Calc'd By:  mf
Job No.:  3030.2

Date:  4/29/2011

Mammoth Geothermal Plant M1 - Reclamation Plan

Storage Volume Calculation

Input:

Rainfall  Quantity 1 in = 0.083 ft

Percolation Rate 0 in/hr = 0.000 ft/hr

Tributary Area

Runoff 

Coefficient

Roof Area 0,000 sf 0% 0.95

AC Pavement 0,000 sf 0% 0.90

Landscape 203,282 sf 100% 0.25

Total Area 203,282 sf 100% 0.25

Average Volume = Total Area * Average Runoff Coefficient * Rainfall

SITE (excluding road)

Area

Storage Volume Required 4,235 cf

Storage Sizing Calculations

From AutoCad Volume Claculations

Basin A 5,130 cf

Basin B 6,551 cf

Storage Volume Provided 11,681 cf
Volume required 4,235 cf

Adequate Storage?  YES

K:\01 Mammoth\3030.2\documents\reclamation plan\drainage calcs\3030.2 retention Retention / Infiltration Calculations

8686



Calc'd By:  mf
Job No.:  3030.2

Date:  4/29/2011

Mammoth Geothermal Plant MP2 - Reclamation Plan

Storage Volume Calculation

Input:

Rainfall  Quantity 1 in = 0.083 ft

Percolation Rate 0 in/hr = 0.000 ft/hr

Tributary Area

Runoff 

Coefficient

Roof Area 0,000 sf 0% 0.95

AC Pavement 0,000 sf 0% 0.90

Landscape 201,523 sf 100% 0.25

Total Area 201,523 sf 100% 0.25

Average Volume = Total Area * Average Runoff Coefficient * Rainfall

SITE (excluding road)

Area

Storage Volume Required 4,198 cf

Storage Sizing Calculations

From AutoCad Volume Claculations

Basin A 5,012 cf

Storage Volume Provided 5,012 cf
Volume required 4,198 cf

Adequate Storage?  YES

K:\01 Mammoth\3030.2\documents\reclamation plan\drainage calcs\3030.2 retention Retention / Infiltration Calculations

8787



Calc'd By:  mf
Job No.:  3030.2

Date:  4/29/2011

Mammoth Geothermal Plant MP1 - Reclamation Plan

Storage Volume Calculation

Input:

Rainfall  Quantity 1 in = 0.083 ft

Percolation Rate 0 in/hr = 0.000 ft/hr

Tributary Area

Runoff 

Coefficient

Roof Area 0,000 sf 0% 0.95

AC Pavement 0,000 sf 0% 0.90

Landscape 67,723 sf 100% 0.25

Total Area 67,723 sf 100% 0.25

Average Volume = Total Area * Average Runoff Coefficient * Rainfall

SITE (excluding road)

Area

Storage Volume Required 1,411 cf

Storage Sizing Calculations

From AutoCad Volume Claculations

Basin A 1,594 cf

Storage Volume Provided 1,594 cf
Volume required 1,411 cf

Adequate Storage?  YES

K:\01 Mammoth\3030.2\documents\reclamation plan\drainage calcs\3030.2 retention Retention / Infiltration Calculations

8888



   

triad/holmes associates   July 2011 

 

Reclamation Plan 

Mammoth Pacific  
MP-1, MP-2, M-1 Power Plants  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX C 

Cost Estimate 
 

 

8989



2/8/2012

            Item Description                                              Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

A. PRODUCTION WELL

 REMOVE PUMP AND WELL PIPING INCL. Well Drill Rig 

@$6,000/day, 3 laborers @$600/day and trucking@$1,600/day 9 EA 40,000 360,000$              

 REMOVE PIPING, CONTROL BUILDING AND RESEED SITE:incl. 

bulldozer and loader @ $3,600/day, hydroseeder and operator 

@$1,200/day and seed @$10,000 9 EA 100,000 900,000$              

SUBTOTAL: 1,260,000$           

B. INJECTION WELL

 RECLAIM PAD (remove piping, pump control bldg., concrete pad, and 

reseed)incl. bulldozer and loader @ $3,600/day, hydroseeder and 

operator @$1,200/day and seed @$10,000 5 EA 20,000 100,000$              

SUBTOTAL: 100,000$              

SUBTOTAL ITEMS A-B: 1,360,000$           

20% Contingencies 272,000$              

TOTAL: 1,632,000$     

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

MAMMOTH PACIFIC WELL REMOVAL

RECLAMATION PLAN

9090



2/8/2012

            Item Description                                              Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

A. GENERAL

MOBILIZATION incl equipment transport, employee 

per diem 1 LS 44,000 44,000$                  

SUBTOTAL: 44,000$                  

B. EROSION CONTROL

 FILTER FENCING / STRAW WATTLE incl wattle at 

$0.40 per lf and labor @$20/hr 1 LS 1,500 1,500$                    

 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET incl. blanket 

@$0.70/sf and labororers @$40/hr for 20 hrs 28,316 SF 1 28,316$                  

 HYDROSEEDING incl. hydroseed and sprayer @ 

$0.20 per sf and two operators @15/hr ea totalling 

$0.19 per sf  203,282 SF 0.30 60,985$                  

 FINE GRADING (INC. SHAPING OF 2:1 SLOPES) 

w/ excavator $3,000/day (w/operator) and bulldozer 

@ $1,500/day for 4.5 days 1 LS 20,000 20,000$                  
SUBTOTAL: 110,801$                

C.  REMOVALS:

 EQUIPMENT REMOVAL AND SALVAGE (incl. 

150T crane @$3,000/day for 40 days and 50T 

crane @ $1,800/day for 80 days  1 LS 170,000 170,000$                

 CONCRETE DEMOLITION and DISPOSAL incl. 

excavator and loader @ $43/cy and trucking and 

disposal @ $20/cy 1,060 CY 65 68,900$                  

 PAVING AND BASE incl. bulldozer and loader @ 

$43/cy and trucking and siposal @ $20/cy 430 CY 63 27,090$                  

 UNDERGROUND RETENTION BASIN incl. 

excavator and loader @ $4,400/day and trucking 

and disposal @ $20/cy 1 LS 50,000 50,000$                  

SUBTOTAL: 315,990$                

SUBTOTAL ITEMS A-C: 470,791$                

20% Contingencies 94,158$                  

TOTAL: 564,949$           

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

MAMMOTH PACIFIC M1

RECLAMATION PLAN

9191



2/8/2012

            Item Description                                              Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

A. GENERAL

MOBILIZATION incl equipment transport, 

employee per diem 1 LS 44,000 44,000$             

SUBTOTAL: 44,000$             

B. EROSION CONTROL

 FILTER FENCING / STRAW WATTLE incl wattle 

at $0.40 per lf and labor @$20/hr 1 LS 1,500 1,500$               

 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET incl. blanket 

@$0.70/sf and labororers @$40/hr for 20 hrs 4,553 SF 1 4,553$               

 HYDROSEEDING incl. hydroseed and sprayer @ 

$0.20 per sf and two operators @15/hr ea totalling 

$0.19 per sf  64,678 SF 0.30 19,403$             

 FINE GRADING (INC. SHAPING OF 2:1 

SLOPES) w/ excavator $3,000/day (w/operator) 

and bulldozer @ $1,500/day for 4.5 days 1 LS 20,000 20,000$             
SUBTOTAL: 25,456$             

C.  REMOVALS:

 EQUIPMENT REMOVAL AND SALVAGE (incl. 

150T crane @$3,000/day for 20 days and 50T 

crane @ $1,800/day for 40 days  1 LS 75,000 75,000$             

 CONCRETE DEMOLITION and DISPOSAL incl. 

excavator and loader @ $43/cy and trucking and 

disposal @ $20/cy 1,797 CY 63 113,211$           

 PAVING AND BASE incl. bulldozer and loader @ 

$43/cy and trucking and siposal @ $20/cy 622 CY 63 39,186$             

SUBTOTAL: 227,397$           

SUBTOTAL ITEMS A-C: 296,853$           

20% Contingencies 59,371$             

TOTAL: 356,224$     

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

MAMMOTH PACIFIC MP1

RECLAMATION PLAN

9292



2/8/2012

            Item Description                                              Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

A. GENERAL

MOBILIZATION incl equipment transport, 
employee per diem 1 LS 44,000 44,000$             

SUBTOTAL: 44,000$             

B. EROSION CONTROL

 FILTER FENCING / STRAW WATTLE incl 
wattle at $0.40 per lf and labor @$20/hr 1 LS 1,500 1,500$               
 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET incl. blanket 
@$0.70/sf and labororers @$40/hr for 34 hrs 2,653 SF 1 2,653$               
 HYDROSEEDING incl. hydroseed and sprayer 
@ $0.20 per sf and two operators @15/hr ea 
totalling $0.19 per sf  201,523 SF 0.30 60,457$             

 FINE GRADING (INC. SHAPING OF 2:1 
SLOPES) w/ excavator $3,000/day (w/operator) 
and bulldozer @ $1,500/day for 4.5 days 1 LS 20,000 20,000$             

SUBTOTAL: 64,610$             

C.  REMOVALS:

 EQUIPMENT REMOVAL AND SALVAGE (incl. 
150T crane @$3,000/day for 40 days and 50T 
crane @ $1,800/day for 80 days  1 LS 150,000 150,000$           
 CONCRETE DEMOLITION and DISPOSAL incl. 
excavator and loader @ $43/cy and trucking and 
disposal @ $20/cy 3,377 CY 63 212,751$           

 PAVING AND BASE incl. bulldozer and loader 
@ $43/cy and trucking and siposal @ $20/cy 2,300 CY 63 144,900$           

SUBTOTAL: 507,651$           

SUBTOTAL ITEMS A-C: 616,261$           

20% Contingencies 123,252$           

TOTAL: 739,513$      

ENGINEER'S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

MAMMOTH PACIFIC MP2

RECLAMATION PLAN

9393



9494

hdebethizy
Text Box
- Existing lighting associated with the project shall meet the requirements of Mono County General Plan Chapter 23.030 applicability section B2. - In addition, any H2 and H3 proposed lighting fixtures shall provide a full visor/shield (as demonstrated on Sheet 2) to comply with Mono County Dark Sky Regulations. 

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text

hdebethizy
Text Box
Sheet 1



9595

hdebethizy
Text Box
Sheet 2



9696

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text
Black Eagle Consulting Letter



9797



9898



9999

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text
Economic Analysis

hdebethizy
Typewritten Text



100100



101101



102102



103103



104104



105105



106106



107107



108108



109109



110110



111111



112112



113113



114114



115115



116116



117117



118118



119119



120120



121121



Planning / Building / Code Compliance / Environmental / Collaborative Planning Team (CPT) 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) / Local Transportation Commission (LTC) / Regional Planning Advisory Committees (RPACs) 

MONO COUNTY 
Planning Division 

 DRAFT NOTICE OF DECISION  
 USE PERMIT, VARIANCE, & RECLAMATION PLAN 

 
USE PERMIT: 12-004 APPLICANT: Mammoth Pacific L.P.
VARIANCE: 12-002   
RECLAMATION PLAN: 12-001
  

037-050-002 & 037-050-005 
 

PROJECT TITLE: Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: The project is located at 94 Casa Diablo Cutoff Road, Mammoth Lakes in 

Mono County, California. 
 
On October 11 2012, a duly advertised and noticed public hearing was held and the necessary findings, pursuant to 
Chapter 32.010, Chapter 33.010, and Chapter 35.030, Land Development Regulations, of the Mono County General 
Plan Land Use Element, were made by the Mono County Planning Commission.  In accordance with those findings, 
a Notice of Decision is hereby rendered for Use Permit 12-004, Variance 12-002, Reclamation Plan 12-
001Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project, subject to the following conditions, at the conclusion of the appeal 
period and upon the provision of clarification of General Plan provisions related to setbacks from a surface 
watercourse by the Board of Supervisors (by adoption of GPA 12-003(b), Board interpretation, or otherwise). 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL/MITIGATION MONITORING & REPORTING PROGRAM 
See attached Conditions of Approval & MMRP 

 
ANY AFFECTED PERSON, INCLUDING THE APPLICANT, NOT SATISFIED WITH THE DECISION OF 
THE COMMISSION, MAY WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE DECISION, 
SUBMIT AN APPEAL IN WRITING TO THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. 
 
THE APPEAL SHALL INCLUDE THE APPELLANT'S INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE 
DECISION OR ACTION APPEALED, SPECIFIC REASONS WHY THE APPELLANT BELIEVES THE 
DECISION APPEALED SHOULD NOT BE UPHELD AND SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY THE 
APPROPRIATE FILING FEE. 
 
DATE OF DECISION/PROJECT APPROVAL: October 11, 2012
EFFECTIVE DATE OF USE PERMIT: Upon provision of clarification by the 

Board of Supervisors of General Plan 
Provisions related to setbacks from a 
surface watercourse. 

 
This Use Permit shall become null and void in the event of failure to exercise the rights of the permit 
within one (1) year from the date of approval unless an extension is applied for at least 60 days prior to 
the expiration date. 
 
Ongoing compliance with the attached conditions and mitigations is mandatory. Failure to comply 
constitutes grounds for revocation and the institution of proceedings to enjoin the subject use.  
 

ACCESSOR PARCEL NUMBER: 

122122



 Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
  October 11, 2012 

2 

DATED: October 11, 2012  
 cc: X Applicant 
  X Public Works 
  X Building  
  X Compliance 

 
 

Draft Conditions of Approval & Mitigation Monitoring  
& Reporting Program 

Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project  
Use Permit 12-004, Variance 12-002, and Reclamation Plan 12-001 

 
1. The project shall comply with the approved Reclamation Plan, Use Permit, and Variance.  
2. The project shall conform to and meet the requirements set forth in the MP-I Replacement 
Project Final EIR and the attached Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.  

123123



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 

 
 

4 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PROGRAM 

4.1 Purpose 

This section lists all mitigation measures contained in the Draft EIR prepared for the proposed Mammoth 
Pacific I (MP-I) Replacement Project (Project) as revised and supplemented by the RDEIR and RDEIR2. 
The mitigation measures are provided in the format of a Comprehensive Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program. This Program complies with State Public Resources Code §21086.6 which requires 
public agencies approving a Project under CEQA to establish a program for monitoring and reporting on 
the adopted mitigation plan. 

4.2 Adoption of Mitigation Measures 

As part of deliberations concerning the proposed Project, the Mono County Planning Commission will be 
required to consider adoption of the mitigation measures listed herein. If the Planning Commission 
approves the MP-I Replacement Project, they will also be required to specify whether these mitigation 
measures are to be formally incorporated as conditions of Project approval. 

4.3 Monitoring and Reporting Procedures 

The Mono County Planning Commission will be responsible for ensuring that all adopted mitigation 
measures are implemented in the manner outlined in this Program. County staff will be responsible for 
ensuring that mitigation measures are satisfactorily monitored, and for reporting to the Planning 
Commission regarding progress in fulfilling the mitigation obligations. The Planning Commission, acting 
on behalf of the residents of Mono County, will in turn be responsible for considering the reports 
submitted by staff, and determining whether the measures are being implemented and enforced as 
intended in this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. It will be the responsibility of the 
Planning Commission to amend these mitigation measures if necessary to achieve the environmental 
protections herein. 

4.4 Regulatory Code and Compliance Standards 

The Project will be subject to a number of uniform code requirements and standard conditions of 
approval. Many of these requirements have been established to safeguard environmental resources, and/or 
to promulgate environmental goals and objectives. If the proposed MP-I Replacement Project is 
approved, compliance with these uniform regulations will be mandatory (not discretionary). Such 
regulations do not conform to the strict definition of mitigation. Although regulatory standards and codes 
are not necessarily incorporated into this mitigation program, the Project will be required to comply fully 
with all relevant regulatory and code compliance standards. 

4.5 Compilation of Mitigation Measures 

The following mitigation measures are proposed to eliminate, avoid, or reduce potential environmental 
effects of the MP-I Replacement Project that have been found to be potentially substantial and adverse. 
These compiled measures will be required as Mono County Conditions of Approval. 

124124



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 

MAMMOTH PACIFIC I REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
MITIGATION IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING PROGRAM AND FORM 

State Clearinghouse #2011022020 
 
 

Project Approval Date:  Project File Number:  

The following measures have been adopted by Mono County (MC). As such, these measures represent formal conditions of approval of the Use 
Permit for the Mammoth Pacific I (MP-I) Replacement Project. Some of the measures were proposed as part of the Project by Mammoth Pacific 
L.P. (Applicant) and some of the measures were recommended environmental protection and mitigation measures in the Revised Draft EIR 
prepared for the Project. Unless explicitly stated otherwise, the Applicant and the MP-I Plant Operator shall be responsible for implementing these 
measures. The County and other identified responsible agencies shall be responsible for monitoring and reporting progress on these measures until 
all measures are fulfilled in accordance with their original purpose and intent as determined by the Mono County Planning Commission. This 
monitoring form shall be available for public review and inspection, and the final project clearance shall require that all verifications included in 
this form have been satisfactorily completed. 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

General Conditions 

1 
Applicant shall conform to the Project Description described in the Revised 
Draft EIR prepared for the Project. Any proposed revisions to the Project 
Description must be approved by Mono County. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MC Department 
of Public 
Works, 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

2 

The startup operating transition period during which both the proposed M-1 
plant power generation facilities and the existing MP-I plant power 
generation facilities may operate at the same time shall be a maximum of 
two years from the date that the proposed M-1 plant begins startup 
operations of any kind. 

Construction 
and Startup 
Operating 
Transition 

Period 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Startup 
Operating 
Transition 

Period 

125125



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 65 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

3 

The rate of geothermal fluid production supplying the Casa Diablo 
geothermal complex during the startup operating transition period during 
which both the proposed M-1 power generation facilities and the existing 
MP-I plant power generation facilities may operate at the same time shall 
not exceed the existing geothermal fluid flow capacity of 6,900,000 pounds 
per hour. 

Construction 
and Startup 
Operating 
Transition 

Period 

CDOGGR, 
MCEDD and 

MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Startup 
Operating 
Transition 

Period 

Aesthetics: 

4 
Aesthetics Design Feature 1: Power plant lighting shall be projected 
downward to mitigate nighttime visibility of the facilities. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCCDD 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

5 
Aesthetics Design Feature 2: An Outdoor Lighting Plan shall be prepared 
and implemented for the M–1 plant site in conformance with the Mono 
County Dark Sky Regulations. 

Design MCCDD 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

6 
Aesthetics Design Feature 3: The M–1 facility structures shall be painted in 
an earth–tone greenish color similar to the existing plants to help blend into 
the background. 

Prior to the 
End of 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 

7 
Aesthetics Design Feature 4: The large pine tree in the southwest corner of 
the M-1 plant shall be saved to provide some visual screening of the plant 
site. 

Design and 
Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

8 
Aesthetics Design Feature 5: Items to be stored within the equipment 
storage area constructed on the decommissioned MP-I plant site shall be 
restricted to a maximum height of 15 feet. 

Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

126126



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 66 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

9 

Aesthetics Design Feature 6: The selected interconnection transmission line 
option(s) from the M-1 plant site to the existing utility distribution line shall 
be constructed near ground level to minimize the visibility of the 
interconnection transmission line. 

Prior to the 
End of 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Plant 
Operations 

10 

Aesthetics Protection Measure 1: A Landscape Plan shall be prepared to 
provide visual screening of views of the proposed storage yard to be created 
in the footprint of the existing MP-I plant site, particularly along the 
southwestern and southeastern edges of the facility. The Landscape Plan 
shall be designed to achieve applicable standards set forth in Section 08.010 
through 08.060 (Scenic Combining District and State Scenic Highway) of 
the Mono County General Plan Land Use Element and shall be approved by 
the County prior to the required decommissioning of the MP-I plant site. 
Visual screening alternatives could include installing metal slats in the 
chain link fence; installing and maintaining native vegetation consisting of 
such species as Jeffery pine, bitterbrush, and sagebrush; or other measures 
consistent with achieving the applicable County standards. 

Prior to the 
End of 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Plant 
Operations 

Air Quality: 

11 
Air Quality Design Feature 1: An Authority to Construct permit for the new 
power plant shall be obtained from the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District (GBUAPCD). 

Prior to 
Construction 

GBUAPCD, 
MCEDD and 

MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Site 
Construction 

12 
Air Quality Design Feature 2: Permits to Operate the diesel fueled 
emergency generator and firewater pump generator shall be obtained from 
the GBUAPCD. 

Prior to 
Construction 

GBUAPCD, 
MCEDD and 

MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Generator 
Operations 

13 
Air Quality Design Feature 3: A vapor recovery unit (VRU) shall be used 
to capture motive fluid that could otherwise be released during plant 
maintenance. 

Design and 
Operations 

GBUAPCD and 
MC Department 
of Public Works 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

127127



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 67 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

14 

Air Quality Design Feature 4: The Applicant shall implement the following 
measures to reduce fugitive dust emissions from the Project: 
 Restrict surface disturbance to the area within the proposed site grading 

plan; 
 Routinely water disturbed surfaces and building materials; 
 Limit maximum construction vehicle speeds to 15 miles per hour 

(mph); 
 Restrict construction activities during periods of high wind (i.e., greater 

than 25 mph); 
 Water or cover all materials transported onto or off of the construction 

site; 
 Pave the plant maintenance road; and 
 Cover all unpaved plant site surfaces with gravel after final grading. 

Construction 

GBUAPCD, 
MCEDD and 

MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Site 
Construction 
and Monitor 
During Site 

Construction 

Biological Resources: 

15 
Bio Design Feature 1: The M-1 plant site shall drain to a subsurface 
retention basin. Overflow from this basin shall drain via sheet flow to the 
surface for percolation. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

16 
Bio Design Feature 2: Short-term and long-term erosion control and 
stormwater construction best management practices (BMP) shall be 
integrated into the interim site reclamation plan for the MP-I plant site. 

Prior to MP-I 
Decommissio

ning 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

17 

Bio Design Feature 3: M-1 plant site construction BMP shall be 
implemented, including: placement of straw wattles and/or silt fencing 
along the perimeter of the site, and around topsoil stockpiles; and 
placement of silt fences in drainage swales at the exit point of the site. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

128128



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 68 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

18 

Bio Design Feature 4: M-1 plant site post-construction BMP shall also be 
implemented, including: the use of erosion control blankets and 
hydroseeding of slopes created by grading outside of the plant site; the 
placement of ¾” rock placed in all areas of the plant site that are not 
covered by pavement or structural concrete; and rock filled trench drains 
and retention facilities shall provide desiltation of storm water runoff. 

Operations 

MC Department 
of Public 
Works, 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

19 
Bio Design Feature 5: The on–site construction vehicle maximum speed 
limit shall be limited to 15 miles per hour (mph) to, in part, reduce the 
potential for vehicle impacts with wildlife during construction activities. 

Construction 

GBUAPCD, 
MCEDD and 

MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

20 

Bio Design Feature 6: All noise creating construction activities shall be 
limited to daylight hours; noise levels during construction activities shall be 
kept to a minimum by equipping all on–site equipment with noise 
attenuation devices; and the M-1 plant site facilities shall operate at lower 
noise levels than those of the existing MP-I plant to, in part, reduce the 
impacts from noise on wildlife. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

21 

Bio Design Feature 7: The M-1 plant site shall be designed and constructed 
to prevent spills from leaving the site and to prevent runoff from any source 
being channeled or directed in an unnatural way so as to cause erosion, 
siltation, or other detriments; a system of pressure and flow sensing devices 
and regular inspection of all lines, capable of detecting leaks and spills, 
shall be instituted and maintained for the M-1 plant site facilities; the 
proposed M-1 plant site shall be integrated into the existing Geothermal 
Brine Spill Prevention and Response Plan prepared for the Casa Diablo 
geothermal complex; and a Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure 
Plan (SPPC Plan) shall be prepared for the plant site and integrated into the 
existing program for hazardous material management and emergency 
response at the Casa Diablo geothermal complex to, in part, reduce the 
potential for adverse offsite effects on biological resources from spills of 
geothermal fluid, petroleum hydrocarbons, or hazardous substances from 
the M-1 plant site. 

Prior to and 
During 

Operations 

MC Department 
of Public 
Works, 

Environmental 
Health, 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

129129



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 69 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

22 
Bio Design Feature 8: Removal of existing pine trees located off of the M-1 
plant site shall be avoided in the placement of the interconnection injection 
pipeline to minimize impacts on offsite vegetation and wildlife habitat. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

23 

Bio Mitigation Measure 1: The MP-I Project shall be subject to the 
applicable hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the Mono County General Plan (Mono County 
General Plan, Conservation/Open Space Element, Energy Resources, 
Goal 1, Objectives C and D), including compliance with conditions 
addressing hydrologic monitoring and remediation contained in the existing 
Conditional Use Permit for the MP-II Geothermal Power Plant. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
the LVHAC 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

24 

Bio Protection Measure 2: All above ground pipelines and transmission 
lines shall be installed using low pressure tracked equipment to minimize 
impacts on vegetation. Understory vegetation and organic horizon may be 
trampled during pipeline and transmission line installation but not removed. 
All Jeffrey pine trees in the installation routes outside of the footprint of the 
M-1 replacement plant site shall be preserved. All interconnection 
transmission line and pipeline installation routes outside of the footprint of 
the M-1 replacement plant site shall be revegetated during the October 
following the respective pipeline or transmission line installations by 
seeding with a [seed mix – scrub] approved by the County which 
emphasizes bitterbrush. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

130130



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 70 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

25 

Bio Protection Measure 3: A post M-1 plant site construction Revegetation 
Plan shall be prepared and submitted to the County. The Revegetation Plan 
shall specify that topsoil at the M-1 pad site, defined as organic litter and 
mineral soil to a depth of 10 inches, shall be stockpiled at the SCE 
easement edge. This topsoil shall be spread to enhance the revegetation 
areas. The revegetation shall include all pad edges, fill slopes, and areas 
disturbed by equipment, except the very small areas mapped as thermally 
disturbed (i.e., the pre-project condition is already devegetated). 
Revegetation areas shall be seeded and the seed immediately raked in 
during the first October following construction, using [seed mix – scrub]. 
After seed is broadcast, the revegetation area shall be mulched using shrubs 
and forest materials retained from the M-1 pad construction area. Once 
seeding and mulching have been completed, the revegetation areas shall be 
kept off-limits to vehicles except in emergency. Revegetation goals are: (1) 
eight native perennial grasses and four native shrubs per 4-square-meter 
quadrat (average of five quadrats per revegetation area), in all areas except 
those mapped as thermally disturbed; and (2) no populations of new non-
native species (i.e., species that were present at Casa Diablo pre-project are 
allowed). If after 3 years goal (1) is not met, then new seeding and 
mulching is required. If at any time a new non-native population occurs, 
then eradication is required. 

Post-
Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Plant 
Operations and 
Monitor Until 
Revegetation 

Goals are 
Successful 

26 

Bio Protection Measure 4: Patches totaling about 7.2 acres of high quality 
Wright Buckwheat Dwarf Scrub habitat have been mapped on the private 
land northeast of the M-1 plant site. The Applicant shall protect this habitat 
from further development and mechanical disturbance and designate the 
mapped area for long-term preservation in the Reclamation Plan prepared 
for the County for the Casa Diablo geothermal development. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Require 
Revision of the 

Reclamation 
Plan and 
Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

131131



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 71 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

27 

Bio Protection Measure 5: During the seasonal bird nesting period from 
February 15th through September 15th, a nesting bird survey shall be 
undertaken by a qualified biologist within the 7-day period prior to 
commencing (or recommencing if activities stop longer than 7 days) 
construction activities on the M-1 plant site. If nesting birds are observed 
on or within 100 feet of the proposed M-1 plant site, then the CDFG shall 
be notified and surface disturbance within 100 feet of the nesting birds shall 
be postponed until a qualified biologist advises that fledging has occurred. 

Pre-
Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Site 
Construction 

28 

Bio Protection Measure 6: A nesting bird survey shall be undertaken by a 
qualified biologist within the 7-day period prior to beginning 
decommissioning of the existing MP-I power generation superstructure. If 
nesting birds are observed on the existing MP-I power generation 
superstructure, then the CDFG shall be notified and decommissioning 
activities shall be postponed until a qualified biologist advises that fledging 
has occurred. 

Pre-
Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Site 
Construction 

29 

Bio Protection Measure 7: The Project shall not erect any linear barriers to 
movement of deer or other wildlife in the area between the existing MP-I 
plant site and the replacement M-1 plant site. During M-1 plant site 
construction, no temporary fencing or pipeline racks shall be erected in this 
same area during the normal periods of mule deer migration, from April 1st 
to May 30th or from September 15th through November 15th. 

Design and 
Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document 
During Site 

Construction 

30 

Bio Protection Measure 8: A new deer crossing shall be constructed over 
the existing pipeline rack between the existing MP-I plant site and the 
replacement M-1 plant site to enhance mule deer and other wildlife 
movement through the Project area. The crossing shall be approximately 
30 feet wide and shall be located near the 90 degree turn in the pipeline 
from east-west to north-south (at about 37.64590◦N, -118.91358◦W). The 
crossing shall be earthen filled over the pipeline rack. The new fill slopes, 
the earthen top, and the adjacent disturbed area shall be revegetated using 
[seed mix – scrub] and Jeffrey pines on 20-foot centers. The finished 
crossing shall resemble the existing crossing at the SCE easement located 
approximately 320 feet east of the 90 degree turn. 

Design and 
Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Post-
Construction 

132132



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 72 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

31 

Bio Protection Measure 9: The mule deer movement corridor identified on 
the northeastern side of the existing Casa Diablo geothermal complex shall 
be maintained free from further development and mechanical disturbance to 
provide continuing wildlife movement through the Casa Diablo area. This 
area generally coincides with the patches of Wright Buckwheat Dwarf 
Scrub community referenced in Bio Protection Measure 4, and the adjacent 
three acres of Singleleaf Pinyon Woodland, and one acre of Jeffrey Pine 
Forest. The Applicant shall protect this movement corridor from further 
development and mechanical disturbance and designate the mapped area 
for long-term preservation in the Reclamation Plan prepared for the County 
for the Casa Diablo geothermal development. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

 

Require 
Revision of the 

Reclamation 
Plan and 
Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

32 

Bio Protection Measure 10: All operational waste facilities shall be located 
within exclusion fences of at least six feet in height to avoid attracting 
potential predators (i.e., including bears, coyotes, and ravens) to the area. 
Gates shall be kept closed if a waste facility is present. All waste 
receptacles shall be fitted with bear-proof lids. The lids shall be kept closed, 
and waste receptacle lid-closure shall be added to the standard plant 
operating protocol. Visiting contractors shall be made aware of the 
importance of proper waste disposal within the Project area. 

Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

33 

Bio Protection Measure 11: Construction lighting shall be shielded away 
from the area located between the existing MP-I plant site and the 
replacement M-1 plant site. Operational lighting located along the northern, 
western, and southern boundaries of the replacement M-1 plant site; and the 
eastern and southern boundaries of the new MP-I storage yard, shall be 
shielded and directed downward or inward away from deer movement 
corridors. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Department 
of Public Works 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

34 

Bio Protection Measure 12: The operational vehicle speed limit in the 
Project area shall be posted and restricted to a maximum 15 miles per hour 
to minimize the potential for vehicle impacts on wildlife. Distractions such 
as using electronic devices, cell phones, etc. shall be prohibited in moving 
vehicles in the Casa Diablo area. Visiting contractors shall be made aware 
of the wildlife collision avoidance rules. 

Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

133133



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 73 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

35 

Bio Protection Measure 13: To avoid harassment of wildlife or take of 
special status wildlife species, all dogs brought into the Project area shall be 
kept on leash unless they are brought into the fenced MP-I plant site or 
fenced M-1 replacement plant site areas and the gates are closed. 
Contractors shall be informed of the requirement that dogs be leashed and 
gates closed. 

Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

36 

Bio Protection Measure 14: All constructed basins in the Project area shall 
have finished slopes of 1:3 or less for at least 10 percent of the basin 
perimeter, with no less than one such slope every 100 feet of perimeter to 
facilitate wildlife escape from the basins. This may be accomplished by 
constructing ramp-like slopes or by piling dirt inside the basins at the 
required slope and interval. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Department 
of Public Works 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

37 

Bio Protection Measure 15: A biological survey for amphibians shall be 
conducted of the existing pond on the MP-I plant within the 7-day period 
prior to demolition of the pond. The CDFG shall be notified if any 
amphibian populations are discovered during the survey. The CDFG shall 
be allowed to determine whether relocation or extermination of the 
amphibian species is indicated. 

Pre-
Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Pond 
Demolition 

38 

Bio Protection Measure 16: All perchable pole tops greater than 20 feet in 
height located near the southern boundary of the M-1 plant site abutting 
undisturbed native scrub habitat, shall be fitted with passive raptor and 
raven perching deterrents (e.g., Nixalite® bird spikes or equivalent). Any 
accumulations of raptor or raven droppings on M-1 plant site structures 
would trigger expanding the passive raptor and raven perching deterrents to 
the affected structure(s). No new potential perches of 20-foot in height or 
greater shall be authorized in the new MP-I storage yard following 
decommissioning activities. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 
and Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

Cultural Resources 

39 

Cultural Design Feature 1: The Applicant shall implement all 
environmental protection measures to reduce the adverse effects of the 
Project on cultural resources that were recommended in the baseline 
cultural resources survey reports prepared for the Project area. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 
During Site 

Grading 

134134



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 74 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

40 

Cultural Protection Measure 1: In the unlikely event that human remains 
are encountered during the construction phase of the project, excavation 
activities shall be stopped and the County Coroner must be contacted. If the 
County Coroner determines that the remains are those of Native Americans, 
the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) must be contacted 
within 24 hours and a Most Likely Descendant will be assigned to consult 
with the County to develop an agreement for the treatment and disposition 
of the remains. 

Construction 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
NAHC 

Confirm and 
Document 
During Site 

Grading 

Geology and Soils 

41 
Geo Design Feature 1: Applicant shall implement those measures 
recommended in the report of the geotechnical investigation of the site to 
mitigate impacts due to geotechnical, soils and geologic constraints. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

42 
Geo Design Feature 2: All buildings and structures shall be constructed to 
meet applicable earthquake safety codes and the 2010 Uniform Building 
Code adopted by Mono County. 

Design and 
Construction 

MCCDD 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

43 

HazMat Design Feature 1: The power plant site shall be designed and 
constructed to prevent spills from leaving the site and endangering adjacent 
properties and waterways, and to prevent runoff from any source being 
channeled or directed in an unnatural way so as to cause erosion, siltation, 
or other detriments. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department, 
Environmental 

Health 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 

44 
HazMat Design Feature 2: A system of pressure and flow sensing devices 
and regular inspection of all lines, capable of detecting leaks and spills, 
shall be instituted and maintained. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 
and Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

135135



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 75 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

45 

HazMat Design Feature 3: The existing program for hazardous material 
management and emergency response at the Casa Diablo geothermal 
complex shall be expanded to include the M–1 plant site and operations, 
including: (a) the existing Spill Pollution Control and Countermeasure 
(SPCC) Plan; (b) the California Accidental Release Prevention (CalARP) 
Program; (c) the EPA Risk Management Plan (RMP); and (d) the OSHA 
Process Safety Management (PSM) Program to include the new M–1 plant. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 

Division and 
MC Health 

Department, 
Environmental 
Health Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 
and Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

46 

HazMat Design Feature 4: The existing program for fire prevention and 
suppression at the Casa Diablo geothermal complex shall be amended and 
integrated to include the M–1 replacement plant facilities and operating 
procedures. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

Long Valley 
Fire Protection 

District 
(LVFPD) 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 
and Monitor 

Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

47 
HazMat Design Feature 5: No hazardous materials, chemicals, or wastes 
shall be stored in the new storage yard constructed in the footprint of the 
decommissioned MP-I plant site. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
Environmental 

Health and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

48 
Hydro Design Feature 1: The M-1 plant site shall drain to a subsurface 
retention basin. Overflow from this basin shall drain via sheet flow to the 
surface for percolation. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 

49 
Hydro Design Feature 1: Short-term and long-term erosion control and 
stormwater construction best management practices (BMPs) shall be 
integrated into the interim site reclamation plan for the MP-I plant site. 

Construction 
and 

Operations 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 
and Lahontan 

RWQCB 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 
to Construction 
and Operations, 

Respectively 

136136



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 76 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

50 

Hydro Design Feature 3: M-1 plant site construction BMPs shall be 
implemented, including: placement of straw wattles and/or silt fencing 
along the perimeter of the site, and around topsoil stockpiles; and 
placement of silt fences in drainage swales at the exit point of the site. 

Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 
and Lahontan 

RWQCB 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 
to Construction 

51 

Hydro Design Feature 4: M-1 plant site post-construction BMPs shall also 
be implemented, including: the use of erosion control blankets and 
hydroseeding of slopes created by grading outside of the plant site; the 
placement of ¾” rock placed in all areas of the plant site that are not 
covered by pavement or structural concrete; and rock filled trench drains 
and retention facilities shall provide desiltation of storm water runoff. 

Post-
Construction 

MC Public 
Works 

Department 
and Lahontan 

RWQCB 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Operations 

52 

Hydro Design Feature 5: The M-1 plant site shall be designed and 
constructed to prevent spills from leaving the site and to prevent runoff 
from any source being channeled or directed in an unnatural way so as to 
cause erosion, siltation, or other detriments; a system of pressure and flow 
sensing devices and regular inspection of all lines, capable of detecting 
leaks and spills, shall be instituted and maintained for the M-1 plant site 
facilities; the proposed M-1 plant site shall be integrated into the existing 
Geothermal Brine Spill Prevention and Response Plan prepared for the 
Casa Diablo geothermal complex; and a Spill Prevention, Control and 
Countermeasure Plan (SPPC Plan) shall be prepared for the plant site and 
integrated into the existing program for hazardous material management 
and emergency response at the Casa Diablo geothermal complex to, in part, 
reduce the potential for adverse offsite effects on water resources from 
spills of geothermal fluid, petroleum hydrocarbons, or hazardous 
substances from the M-1 plant site. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MC Public 
Works 

Department, 
MC Health 

Department, 
Environmental 
Health Division 

and 
Lahontan 
RWQCB 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

then Monitored 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

137137



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 77 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

53 

Hydro Design Feature 6: No element of the project construction shall result 
in the alteration of the blue-line drainage channel, or discharge of fill 
material into, the blue-line drainage channel that crosses the site between 
the existing MP-I and proposed M-1 plant sites, adjacent to Old 
Highway 395. Prior to commencement of construction, the Applicant shall 
provide to the County the proposed engineering design for the road 
crossing which demonstrates to the County that no impact to this drainage 
channel would occur as a result of project construction. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Department 
of Public 
Works, 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Through 

Construction 

54 

Hydro Mitigation Measure 1: Headwalls and sluice gates constructed on 
culverts draining the Casa Diablo geothermal complex to provide area-wide 
emergency spill containment and prevent surface drainage from escaping 
the area shall be inspected and maintained routinely. 

Operations 

MC Public 
Works, 

Environmental 
Health 

Department 
and Lahontan 

RWQCB 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

then Monitored 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

55 

Hydro Mitigation Measure 2: All geothermal fluid, petroleum product, and 
hazardous substance spill containment and emergency response plans 
proposed for the Project shall be maintained current throughout the life of 
the Project. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 

Division and 
MC Health 

Department, 
Environmental 
Health Division 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

23* 
[Restated] 

Hydro Mitigation Measure 3: The MP-I Project shall be subject to the 
applicable hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the Mono County General Plan (Mono County 
General Plan, Conservation/Open Space Element, Energy Resources, 
Goal 1, Objectives C and D), including compliance with conditions 
addressing hydrologic monitoring and remediation contained in the existing 
Conditional Use Permit for the MP-II Geothermal Power Plant. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and 
the LVHAC 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

138138



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 78 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

Noise 

56 
Noise Design Feature 1: All noisy construction activities shall be limited to 
daylight hours. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

57 
Noise Design Feature 2: Noise levels during construction activities shall be 
kept to a minimum by equipping all on–site equipment with noise 
attenuation devices. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

58 
Noise Design Feature 3: All project construction activities and normal 
operations shall comply with applicable County noise requirements. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

Land Use/Planning 

5** 
[Restated] 

Land Use/Planning Design Feature 1: An Outdoor Lighting Plan shall be 
prepared and implemented for the M–1 plant site in conformance with the 
Mono County Dark Sky Regulations. 

Design 
MC Public 

Works 
Department 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

42** 
(Restated] 

Land Use/Planning Design Feature 2: All buildings and structures shall be 
constructed to meet applicable earthquake safety codes and the 2010 
Uniform Building Code adopted by Mono County. 

Design and 
Construction 

MCCDD 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

53*** 
[Restated] 

Land Use/Planning Design Feature 3: No element of the project 
construction shall result in the alteration of the blue-line drainage channel, 
or discharge of fill material into, the blue-line drainage channel that crosses 
the site between the existing MP-I and proposed M-1 plant sites, adjacent to 
Old Highway 395. Prior to commencement of construction, the Applicant 
shall provide to the County the proposed engineering design for the road 
crossing which demonstrates to the County that no impact to this drainage 
channel would occur as a result of project construction. 

Design and 
Construction 

MC Department 
of Public 
Works, 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Through 

Construction 

139139



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 79 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

58** 
[Restated] 

Land Use/Planning Design Feature 4: All project construction activities and 
normal operations shall comply with applicable County noise requirements. 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Monitor During 
Site 

Construction 

10** 
[Restated] 

Land Use/Planning Protection Measure 1: A Landscape Plan shall be 
prepared to provide visual screening of views of the proposed storage yard 
to be created in the footprint of the existing MP-I plant site, particularly 
along the southwestern and southeastern edges of the facility. The 
Landscape Plan shall be designed to achieve applicable standards set forth 
in Section 08.010 through 08.060 (Scenic Combining District and State 
Scenic Highway) of the Mono County General Plan Land Use Element and 
shall be approved by the County prior to the required decommissioning of 
the MP-I plant site. Visual screening alternatives could include installing 
metal slats in the chain link fence; installing and maintaining native 
vegetation consisting of such species as Jeffery pine, bitterbrush, and 
sagebrush; or other measures consistent with achieving the applicable 
County standards. 

Prior to the 
End of 

Construction 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document Prior 

to Plant 
Operations 

140140



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 80 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

Cumulative Effects 

59 

Cumulative Bio Mitigation Measure 1: Constraints to wildlife movement 
through the Casa Diablo Hot Springs area shall be evaluated as part of any 
new development project proposed in the area. Measures shall be included 
as part of each new development project that would prevent the respective 
project from becoming a substantial obstacle to wildlife movement through 
or around the respective proposed development area. Mitigation measures 
to reduce cumulative impacts should be project specific, but examples of 
suggested measures to mitigate cumulative impacts include: 
 Conducting baseline deer studies of proposed projects in the Casa 

Diablo Hot Springs area and monitoring deer use within and near a new 
proposed project. 

 Designing pipeline corridors or other potential physical obstacles to 
allow for deer and other wildlife movement such that dips, piled soil 
crossings or other proposed constructs to facilitate wildlife travel 
through identified major movement corridors are adopted as part of a 
new proposed project. 

 Requiring that proposed project lighting be shielded away from 
identified major deer and other wildlife movement corridors. 

Design, 
Construction 

and 
Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and/or the 
Responsible 

Federal Agency 
and 

CDFG 

Review 
Baseline 

Surveys and 
Impacts on 

Wildlife 
Movement Prior 
to Decisions on 

Project 
Approval and 
Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

60 

Cumulative Bio Mitigation Measure 2: Water which may accumulate in 
geothermal well site basins from precipitation shall be removed to a 
standing depth of 2 inches from the respective basins on a daily basis or as 
soon as operationally feasible; and liquids deposited into the basins shall 
either be removed daily to a standing depth of 2 inches, or the basins shall 
be made wildlife escapable by creating earthen ramps at slopes of 1:3 or 
less at intervals of 100 feet apart or less around the perimeter of the 
standing depth of the liquid stored in the basin. Alternatives for providing 
equally effective measures which would allow wildlife to escape unharmed 
from the well site basins may be authorized subject to Mono County and 
CDFG approval. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and/or the 
Responsible 

Federal Agency 
and 

CDFG 

Confirm and 
Document 

During Design 
Approval 

141141



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 81 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

61 

Cumulative Bio Mitigation Measure 3: All existing and future geothermal 
power plant projects in the Hot Creek buffer zone, or in the vicinity of Casa 
Diablo Hot Springs, shall be subject to the applicable hydrologic and 
biologic monitoring and remedial action program requirements set forth in 
the Mono County General Plan (Mono County General Plan, 
Conservation/Open Space Element, Energy Resources, Goal 1, 
Objectives C and D, as may be amended), including compliance with 
conditions addressing hydrologic monitoring and remediation contained in 
the existing Conditional Use Permit for the MP-II Geothermal Power Plant. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and/or the 
Responsible 

Federal Agency 
and  

the LVHAC 

Require 
Monitoring and 

Remedial 
Action Program 
with Decisions 
on Respective 

Project 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

61* 
[Restated] 

Cumulative Hydro Mitigation Measure 1: All existing and future 
geothermal power plant projects in the Hot Creek buffer zone, or in the 
vicinity of Casa Diablo Hot Springs, shall be subject to the applicable 
hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the Mono County General Plan (Mono County 
General Plan, Conservation/Open Space Element, Energy Resources, 
Goal 1, Objectives C and D, as may be amended), including compliance 
with conditions addressing hydrologic monitoring and remediation 
contained in the existing Conditional Use Permit for the MP-II Geothermal 
Power Plant. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and/or the 
Responsible 

Federal Agency 
and 

the LVHAC 

Require 
Monitoring and 

Remedial 
Action Program 
with Decisions 
on Respective 

Project 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

61* 
[Restated] 

Cumulative Land Use/Planning Mitigation Measure 1: All existing and 
future geothermal power plant projects in the Hot Creek buffer zone, or in 
the vicinity of Casa Diablo Hot Springs, shall be subject to the applicable 
hydrologic and biologic monitoring and remedial action program 
requirements set forth in the Mono County General Plan (Mono County 
General Plan, Conservation/Open Space Element, Energy Resources, 
Goal 1, Objectives C and D, as may be amended), including compliance 
with conditions addressing hydrologic monitoring and remediation 
contained in the existing Conditional Use Permit for the MP-II Geothermal 
Power Plant. 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

and/or the 
Responsible 

Federal Agency 
and 

the LVHAC 

Require 
Monitoring and 

Remedial 
Action Program 
with Decisions 
on Respective 

Project 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

142142



Mammoth Pacific I Replacement Project 
Final EIR 

 
 

 
 

 82 
 

Number Mono County Conditions of Approval 
Schedule of 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Entity* 

Verification 
Date 

62 
Cumulative Aesthetics Protection Measure 1: Applicable Mono County 
lighting standards shall apply to all projects in the Casa Diablo geothermal 
development complex. 

Construction 
and 

Operations 

MCEDD and 
MCCDD 
Planning 
Division 

Confirm and 
Document 

During 
Respective 

Project Design 
Approval 

63 

Cumulative Air Quality Protection Measure 1: Vehicle speeds shall be 
restricted to a maximum speed of 15 miles per hour for project-related 
travel on all unpaved access roads. Vehicle speed limits shall be posted in 
conformance with applicable Mono County and/or U.S. Forest Service 
(USFS) requirements and restrictions. 

Construction 
and 

Operations 

MCEDD, 
MCCDD 
Planning 

Division and/or 
the BLM, USFS 

and 
GBUAPCD 

Require with 
Decisions on 
Respective 

Project 
Approval and 

Monitor 
Throughout the 
Project Lifetime 

* The monitoring entities identified by abbreviation in these tabulated Conditions of Approval are as follows: 
BLM ≡ U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management 
CDFG ≡ California Department of Fish and Game 
CDOGGR ≡ California Division of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources 
GBUAPCD ≡ Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 
LVFPD ≡ Long Valley Fire Protection District 
LVHAC ≡ Long Valley Hydrologic Advisory Committee 
MCCDD ≡ Mono County Community Development Department 
MCEDD ≡ Mono County Economic Development Department 
RWQCB ≡ Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
USFS ≡ U.S. Department of Agriculture, Inyo National Forest 

 

143143


	pc packet 10.11.12.pdf
	pc agenda 10.11.12.pdf
	pc draft minutes 09.13.12
	foster PC staff 10 11 12
	Foster GPA Resolution PC 10 11 12 (1)
	Foster Transient Rental DEED RESTRICTION AND AGREEMENT (final)

	Staff Report [10.11.12]
	Resolution [10.11.12]
	E1 A Resolution Exhibit A [15091 Findings]
	E1 B Resolution Exhibit B [variance findings]
	E1C Resolution Exhibit C [CUP findings]
	E1 D Resolution Exhibit D [Rec Plan Findings]
	E 2 Reclamation Plan including Landscape Plan
	E 3 a Outdoor Lighting Plan Sheet 1
	E 3 b Outdoor Lighting Plan Sheet 2
	E 4 a Black Eagle Consulting letter (in support of variance)
	E 4 b Black Eagle Letter Attachment M1 Constraints Map
	E 5 a Economic Analysis 1
	E 5 b Economic Analysis 2
	E 5 c Economic Analysis 3
	E7 MP-I Notice of Decision [Planning Commission]
	E 7 b MMRP



